
Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District Five 

Brett Sanders 
V. Chairman, District Four

PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 | www.andersoncountysc.org 

John B. Wright, Jr. 
District One 

Glenn Davis 
District Two 

Ray Graham 
District Three 

Jimmy Davis 
District Six 

M. Cindy Wilson
District Seven 

Renee Watts
Clerk to Council 

Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 

AGENDA  
ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

Special Presentation Meeting 
Tuesday, January 4, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. 

Anderson County Civic Center 
3027 Martin Luther King, Jr. Boulevard 

 Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. RESOLUTIONS/PROCLAMATION:

a. R2021-061- A Resolution honoring Marty Knight upon his promotion to 10th Degree Black Belt; and other
matters related thereto.

Hon. Ray Graham 

b. R2022-001- A Resolution to honor and recognize Starr-Iva Water & Sewer District for being named the 2021
South Carolina Rural Water District of the Year; and other matters related thereto.

  Hon. Ray Graham 

3. ADJOURNMENT

 AGENDA  
ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
Tuesday, January 4, 2022, at 6:30 p.m. 

Anderson County Civic Center 
3027 Martin Luther King, Jr. Boulevard 

 Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  Hon. Brett Sanders 

3. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN

4. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRMAN

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES   minutes not received, December 21, 2021 



Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, January 4, 2022 
Page 2 

6. CITIZENS COMMENTS  Agenda Matters Only 

7. ORDINANCE THIRD READING: none

8. ORDINANCE SECOND READING:

a. 2021-074- An Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business
park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge the park to include certain property of
Equinox Mill LLC; and other matters related thereto.

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

b. 2021-075- An Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business
park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge the park; and other matters related
thereto.

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

c. 2021-076- An Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business
park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge the park to include certain property of Old
Dominion Freight Line, Inc.; and other matters related thereto. [Project Greenlight]

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

d. 2021-077- An Ordinance authorizing and approving (1) The development of a joint county industrial and business
park pursuant to section 4-1-170 of the code of South Carolina 1976, as amended, in conjunction with Greenville
County ( The “Park”), such park to be geographically located in Greenville County; (2) the execution and delivery 
of a written park agreement with Greenville County as to the requirement of payments of fee in lieu of ad valorem
taxes with respect to park property and the sharing of the revenues and expenses of the park; (3) the distribution
of revenues from the park with Anderson County; and (4) other matters related thereto. (Project Ott)

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

9. FIRST READING:

a. 2022-001- An Ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax agreement by and between
Anderson County, South Carolina and a company known to the County at this time as Project Faith with respect
to certain economic development property in the County, whereby such property will be subject to certain
payments in lieu of taxes, including the provision of certain special source credits; and other matters related
thereto.

b. 2022-002- An Ordinance to provide for redistricting of the seven County Council districts of Anderson County,
as to population, prior to the next general election cycle following the adoption by the State of South Carolina of
the 2020 Decennial Census, pursuant to section 4-9-90, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended; and
other matters related thereto.



Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, January 4, 2022 
Page 3 

10. RESOLUTIONS:

a. R2022-003- A Resolution authorizing the execution and delivery of an inducement agreement by and between
Anderson County, South Carolina and Project Faith, whereby, under certain conditions, Anderson County will
execute a fee in lieu of tax and special source credit agreement with respect to a project in the County whereby
the project would be subject to payment of certain fees in lieu of taxes, and whereby Project Faith will be provided
certain credits against fee payments in reimbursement of investment in related qualified infrastructure; and
providing for related matters.

11. BID APPROVAL:
a. Bid #22-027 ACTC #122 Resurfacing
b. Bid #22-029 ASEC Field Lighting

     Mr. Robert Carroll (allotted 5 minutes) 

11. AED / PUBLIC SAFETY
 Mr. Ray Graham (allotted 5 minutes) 

12. ROAD ACCEPTANCE INTO COUNTY INVEMTORY:
a. Shackleburg Farms Subdivision Phase II: (District 4)

 Fern Hollow Trial 
    Mr. Matt Hogan (allotted 5 minutes) 

13. REQUESTS BY COUNCIL

14. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT

15. CITIZENS COMMENTS  Non-Agenda Matters 

16. REMARKS FROM COUNCIL

17. ADJOURNMENT

Anyone who requires an auxiliary aid or service for effective communication, or a 
modification of policies or procedures in order to participate in this program, service 

or activity please contact the office of the program, service or activity as soon as 
possible but no later than 24 hours before the scheduled event. For assistance, please 

contact the Clerk to Council at (864) 260-1036. 



RESOLUTION 2021-061 

A RESOLUTION HONORING MARTY KNIGHT UPON HIS PROMOTION TO 
10th DEGREE BLACK BELT; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, karate is a martial art emphasizing striking techniques and is steeped in a 
tradition dating back more than 500 years to the Ryukyu Kingdom in East Asia; and, 

WHEREAS, Belton native Marty Knight has been awarded the 10th Degree black belt in 
karate by Ken Vitali American Karate and the South Carolina Dan Board, a distinction 
bestowed only on those martial artists who have spent years in furtherance of the 
martial arts and have demonstrated a lifetime of significant achievement; and,  

WHEREAS, for almost fifty years Marty has studied, practiced and taught karate, having 
earned his black belt in 1975 while training under Keith Vitali and Mike Genova, and 
continuing on to become a world- renowned competitor and instructor; and, 

WHEREAS, over the course of his competitive martial arts career, Marty has won four 
world championships, six national championships, and seven international titles; and, 

WHEREAS, since 1978, in keeping with Marty’s belief that the traits of dedication, 
diligence, and self-discipline inherent to the martial arts are life lessons that can be used 
both on and off the mat, Marty Knight Karate has trained three generations of children 
and adults in our area.  Marty also conducts after-school programs as well as self-
defense and women's kickboxing clinics, all in furtherance of the tradition of educating 
others in the techniques and philosophies of the martial arts; and, 

WHEREAS, Marty's career highlights include: being voted in the top twenty black belts in 
the nation in 1985; travelling in 1989 with the Chuck Norris team to Russia, where he was 
named the most valuable competitor of the team; earning gold medals in Greece, 
South America, Ireland, Canada, Mexico, and Jamaica; and induction into the United 
States Hall of Fame. Marty has won every national tournament in America and has 
never lost an international match; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson County Council hereby 
congratulates Marty Knight on his attainment of the 10th Degree black belt in karate, 
and in doing so, we honor him not only for his mastery of technical martial arts skills but 
also for his life’s work of instilling the traits of honor, respect, and courage in others. 

RESOLVED in a meeting duly assembled this 4th day of January, 2022. 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY ATTEST 

____________________ ____________________ 
Ray Graham  Rusty Burns 
County Council District Three County Administrator 

____________________ 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 



RESOLUTION R2022-001 

A RESOLUTION TO HONOR AND RECOGNIZE STARR-IVA WATER & 
SEWER DISTRICT FOR BEING NAMED THE 2021 SOUTH CAROLINA RURAL 
WATER DISTRICT OF THE YEAR; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED 
THERETO. 
 
WHEREAS, the mission of the Starr-Iva Water & Sewer District is to provide safe, high-
quality water services to the community while maintaining a standard of excellence in 
customer service and environmental conservation; and 
 
WHEREAS, Starr-Iva Water & Sewer District has six full-time employees who serve 
4,300 customers with more than 200 miles of pipe in Anderson and Abbeville counties; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Starr-Iva Water & Sewer District was named the 2021 South Carolina Rural 
Water System of the Year by the South Carolina Rural Water Association at the 
Association’s annual conference on November 17th; and 
 
WHEREAS, the selection criteria for the award include innovation & technology, 
efficiency, and capital improvement projects; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson County Council hereby 
congratulates Starr-Iva Water & Sewer District for winning statewide recognition and, on 
behalf of the citizens of Anderson County, thanks the District’s board of directors and staff 
for their committed, dedicated service. 
 
RESOLVED in a meeting duly assembled this 4th day of January, 2022. 

 
 
FOR ANDERSON COUNTY   ATTEST 
 
 
____________________    ____________________ 
Ray Graham      Rusty Burns 
County Council     County Administrator  
District Three 
       ____________________ 
       Renee Watts 

Clerk to Council 



HSB 7025105 v.2  

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-074 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT 

OF A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF 
ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK 
TO INCLUDE CERTAIN PROPERTY OF EQUINOX MILL LLC; AND OTHER 
MATTERS RELATED THERETO 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted by Anderson County Council on 
November 16, 2010 and Ordinance No. 4391 enacted November 2, 2010 by Greenville County Council, 
Anderson and Greenville Counties entered into an Agreement for the Development of a Joint County 
Industrial and Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010 (the “Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park created therein 
(the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of Anderson County and 
Greenville County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Anderson County to Equinox 
Mill LLC, it is now desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain parcels in 
Anderson County;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that Exhibit A to the 
Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include the property located in Anderson County 
described in the schedule attached to this Ordinance, and, pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, upon 
adoption by Greenville County Council of a corresponding ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed 
amended to so include such property and Exhibit A as so revised, without further action by either county. 
 
 DONE in meeting duly assembled this __ day of ______________, 2022.  
 
       

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
ATTEST: 
      
 __________________________________   __________________________________ 
Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
 
_____________________________    
Renee Watts       
Clerk to Council 
               
  
 
 
 
 
 



HSB 7025105 v.2  

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
        
 
 
 
    __________ 
Leon C. Harmon, Anderson County Attorney  
     
 
First Reading: ________, 20__ 
Second Reading: ________, 20__ 
Third Reading: ________, 20__ 
Public Hearing: ________, 20__  



 A-1 

Addition to Exhibit A to 
Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 
between Anderson County and Greenville County 

 
Anderson County TMS Numbers: 

1) 1231102014 

2) 1231103002 

3) 1231102028 

4) 1231209001 

5) 1231102015 

6) 1231205003 
 



HSB 7025105 v.2  

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      ) 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON    ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of ___________, 20__, ________, 20__ and 
_________, 20__, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and 
an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Clerk, Anderson County Council 
 
 
Dated: ________, 2022 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-075 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT 

OF A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF 
ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK; 
AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted by Anderson County Council on 
November 16, 2010 and Ordinance No. 4391 enacted November 2, 2010 by Greenville County Council, 
Anderson County and Greenville County entered into an Agreement for the Development of a Joint County 
Industrial and Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010 (the “Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park created therein 
(the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of Anderson County and 
Greenville County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Greenville County to Luxor 
Scientific LLC, it is now desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain parcels in 
Greenville County;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that Exhibit A to the 
Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include the property located in Greenville County 
described in the schedule attached to this Ordinance, and, pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, upon 
adoption by Anderson County of this Ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed amended to so include 
such property and Exhibit A as so revised, without further action by either county. 
 
 DONE in meeting duly assembled this __ day of ______________, 2022.  
 
ATTEST: FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

 
 
 
 
 

Rusty Burns Tommy Dunn 
Anderson County Administrator Chairman 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

 
 

 

 



APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 

Leon C. Harmon 
County Attorney 

First Reading:  _____________  

Second Reading:           ____________ 

Third Reading: _____________  

Public Hearing:   _______ 



A-1 

Addition to Exhibit A to 
Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 
between Anderson County and Greenville County 

 
 

TMS No. 0547010101300 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      ) 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON    ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of  _____________, 20__, ___________, 
20__ and __________, 20__, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and 
voted, and an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Clerk, Anderson County Council 
 
 
Dated: ________, 2022 
 



HSB 7027054 v.2  

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-076 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT 

OF A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF 
ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK 
TO INCLUDE CERTAIN PROPERTY OF OLD DOMINION FREIGHT LINE, 
INC.; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted by Anderson County Council on 
November 16, 2010 and Ordinance No. 4391 enacted November 2, 2010 by Greenville County Council, 
Anderson and Greenville Counties entered into an Agreement for the Development of a Joint County 
Industrial and Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010 (the “Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park created therein 
(the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of Anderson County and 
Greenville County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Anderson County to Old 
Dominion Freight Line, Inc., it is now desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain 
parcels in Anderson County;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that Exhibit A to the 
Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include the property located in Anderson County 
described in the schedule attached to this Ordinance, and, pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, upon 
adoption by Greenville County Council of a corresponding ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed 
amended to so include such property and Exhibit A as so revised, without further action by either county. 
 
 DONE in meeting duly assembled this __ day of ______________, 2022.  
 
       

ATTEST: FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 
 
 
 
 

Rusty Burns Tommy Dunn 
Anderson County Administrator Chairman 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

 
 

 



HSB 7027054 v.2  

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 

Leon C. Harmon 
County Attorney 

First Reading:  _____________  

Second Reading:           ____________ 

Third Reading: _____________  

Public Hearing:   _______ 



A-1 
HSB 7027054 v.2  

Addition to Exhibit A to 
Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 
between Anderson County and Greenville County 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



HSB 7027054 v.2  

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      ) 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON    ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of  _____________, 20__, ___________, 
20__ and __________, 20__, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and 
voted, and an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Clerk, Anderson County Council 
 
 
Dated: ________, 2022 
 



PPAB 6601854v3 

AN ORDINANCE NO.: 2021-077 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING (1) THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS 
PARK PURSUANT TO SECTION 4-1-170 OF THE CODE OF LAWS OF 
SOUTH CAROLINA 1976, AS AMENDED, IN CONJUNCTION WITH 
GREENVILLE COUNTY (THE “PARK”), SUCH PARK TO BE 
GEOGRAPHICALLY LOCATED IN GREENVILLE COUNTY; (2) THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A WRITTEN PARK AGREEMENT 
WITH GREENVILLE COUNTY AS TO THE REQUIREMENT OF 
PAYMENTS OF FEE IN LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES WITH RESPECT 
TO PARK PROPERTY AND THE SHARING OF THE REVENUES AND 
EXPENSES OF THE PARK; (3) THE DISTRIBUTION OF REVENUES 
FROM THE PARK WITHIN ANDERSON COUNTY; AND (4) OTHER 
MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution 
and Section 4-1-170 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the “Act”), 
Anderson County and Greenville County are authorized to enter into a multi-county industrial or 
business park to promote economic development and encourage investment and employment 
opportunities in and around Anderson County and Greenville County; and 

WHEREAS, in order to continue to promote economic development and encourage 
investment and employment opportunities in and around Anderson County and Greenville 
County, as authorized by Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution and the 
Act, Anderson County has requested that Greenville County develop, together with Anderson 
County, a joint county industrial and business park (the “Park”); and 

WHEREAS, Anderson County and Greenville County have agreed to the specific terms 
and conditions of the Park arrangement as set forth in that certain Agreement for Development of 
a Joint County Industrial and Business Park proposed to be entered into by and between 
Anderson County and Greenville County as of [DATE], 2022 (the “Park Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, it is the expressed intent of Anderson County by the establishment of the 
Park and the Agreement, that the properties appearing in Exhibit A to the Park Agreement shall 
be located within a Multi County Industrial or Business Park; and   

WHEREAS, it appears that the Park Agreement now before this meeting is in appropriate 
form and is an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered by Anderson County for the 
purposes intended. 
. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL: 

Section 1. Approval of the Park Agreement.  The form, provisions, terms and 
conditions of the Park Agreement now before this meeting and filed with the Clerk to Anderson 



PPAB 6601854v3 - 2 -

County Council be and they are hereby approved, and effective as of [DATE], 2022, and all of 
the provisions, terms and conditions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by reference as if the 
Park Agreement were set out in this Ordinance in its entirety.  The Chairman of the Anderson 
County Council and the County Administrator of Anderson County are hereby authorized and 
empowered to execute the Park Agreement in the name and on behalf of Anderson County; the 
Clerk to the Anderson County Council is hereby authorized and empowered to attest the same; 
and the Chairman of the Anderson County Council and the County Administrator of Anderson 
County are further authorized and empowered to deliver the Park Agreement to Greenville 
County. 

The Park Agreement is to be in substantially the form now before this meeting and 
hereby approved, or with such changes therein as shall not materially adversely affect the rights 
of Anderson County thereunder and as shall be approved by the officials of Anderson County 
executing the same, their execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of their approval of 
any and all changes or revisions therein from the form of the Park Agreement now before this 
meeting. 

The Chairman of Anderson County Council and the County Administrator of Anderson 
County, for and on behalf of Anderson County, are hereby each authorized and empowered to do 
any and all things necessary or proper to effect the development of the Park and the performance 
of all obligations of Anderson County under and pursuant to the Park Agreement and to carry out 
the transactions contemplated thereby and by this Ordinance. 

Section 2. Payment of Fee in Lieu of Tax. The businesses and industries located 
in the Park must pay a fee in lieu of ad valorem taxes as provided for in the Park Agreement.  
With respect to properties located in the Park, the fee paid in lieu of ad valorem taxes shall be 
paid to the Treasurer of Greenville County.  That portion of such fee allocated pursuant to the 
Park Agreement to Anderson County shall be thereafter paid by the Treasurer of Greenville 
County to the Treasurer of Anderson County within ten (10) business days following the end of 
the calendar quarter of receipt, for distribution in accordance with the Park Agreement.  The 
provisions of Section 12-2-90 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, or any 
successor statutes or provisions, apply to the collection and enforcement of the fee in lieu of ad 
valorem taxes. 

Section 3. Distribution of Revenues within Anderson County. Revenues generated 
from industries and businesses located in the Park received by Anderson County pursuant to the 
Park Agreement shall be distributed as determined by Anderson County. If no determination is 
made, such revenues shall be retained by Anderson County. 

Section 4. Applicable Ordinances and Regulations. Any applicable ordinances and 
regulations of Anderson County including those concerning zoning, health and safety, and 
building code requirements shall apply to the Park properties unless the properties are within the 
boundaries of a municipality in which case, the municipality’s applicable ordinances and 
regulations shall apply.   

Section 5. Law Enforcement Jurisdiction. Jurisdiction to make arrests and 
exercise all authority and power within the boundaries of the Park in Greenville County is vested 



PPAB 6601854v3 - 3 -

with the Sheriff’s Department of Greenville County.  If any of the Park properties are within the 
boundaries of a municipality, then jurisdiction to make arrests and exercise law enforcement 
jurisdiction is vested with the law enforcement officials of the municipality. 

Section 6.  Conflicting Provisions. To the extent this ordinance contains provisions that 
conflict with provisions contained elsewhere in the Anderson County Code or other Anderson 
County ordinances, the provisions contained in this ordinance supersede all other provisions and 
this ordinance is controlling. 

Section 7.  Severability.  If any section of this ordinance is, for any reason, determined 
to be void or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect the validity of any 
other section of this ordinance which is not itself void or invalid. 

Section 8.  Effectiveness.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon third and final reading. 

[End of Ordinance - Signature page to follow] 



PPAB 6601854v3 - 4 -

Enacted and approved, in meeting duly assembled, this [DATE] day of [MONTH], 2022. 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By: ________________________________________ 
         Tommy Dunn, Chairman, County Council 

Anderson County, South Carolina 

ATTEST: 

By: _______________________________________ 
Rusty Burns, County Administrator 
Anderson County, South Carolina 

By: _______________________________________ 
Renee D. Watts, Clerk to County Council 
Anderson County, South Carolina 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

First reading:  December 21, 2021 
Second reading:  _______________, 2022 
Public hearing:   _______________, 2022 
Third reading:   _______________, 2022 



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-001 
 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A 
FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN ANDERSON 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND A COMPANY KNOWN TO THE COUNTY 
AT THIS TIME AS PROJECT FAITH WITH RESPECT TO CERTAIN 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY IN THE COUNTY, WHEREBY 
SUCH PROPERTY WILL BE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF 
TAXES, INCLUDING THE PROVISION OF CERTAIN SPECIAL SOURCE 
CREDITS; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
WHEREAS, ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the “County”), acting by and 

through its County Council (the “County Council”), is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to 
the provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44 (the “FILOT Act”), Title 4, Chapter 1 (the “Multi-County Park 
Act”), and Title 4, Chapter 29, of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, to enter into 
agreements with industry whereby the industry would pay fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to qualified 
projects; to provide infrastructure credits against payment in lieu of taxes for reimbursement in respect of 
investment in certain infrastructure enhancing the economic development of the County; through all such 
powers the industrial development of the State of South Carolina (the “State”) will be promoted and trade 
developed by inducing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate or remain in the State and thus 
utilize and employ the manpower, products and resources of the State and benefit the general public welfare 
of the County by providing services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided 
locally; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the FILOT Act, and in order to induce investment in the County, the 
County did previously enter into an Inducement Agreement dated _____________, 2022 (the “Inducement 
Agreement”) with ________________, a South Carolina corporation (the “Company”) (which was known 
to the County at the time as “Project Faith”), with respect to the acquisition, construction, and installation 
of land, buildings, improvements, fixtures, machinery, equipment, furnishings and other real and/or tangible 
personal property to constitute an expansion of the Company’s existing metal fabrication manufacturing 
facility and machine shop in the County (collectively, the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company has represented that the Project will involve an investment of 
approximately $3,825,000 in the County and the expected creation of 10 new, full-time jobs at the Project, 
all within the Investment Period (as such term is defined in the hereinafter defined Fee Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has determined on the basis of the information supplied to it by the 
Company that the Project would be a “project” and “economic development property” as such terms are 
defined in the FILOT Act, and that the Project would serve the purposes of the FILOT Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of Section 4-1-170 of the Multi-County Park Act and Article 
VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution, the County intends to cause the Project, to the extent 
not already therein located, to be placed in a joint county industrial and business park (the “MCIP”) such 
that the Project will receive the benefits of the Multi-County Park Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Inducement Agreement, the County has agreed to, among other 
things, (a) enter into a Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement with the Company (the 
“Fee Agreement”), whereby the County would provide therein for a payment of a fee-in-lieu-of taxes by 
the Company with respect to the Project, (b) provide for certain special source credits to be claimed by the 
Company against its payments of fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to the Project pursuant to Section 4-1-
175 of the Multi-County Park Act; and  



2 

 
 WHEREAS, the County Council has caused to be prepared and presented to this meeting the form 
of the Fee Agreement which the County proposes to execute and deliver; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it appears that the documents above referred to, which are now before this meeting, 
are in appropriate form and are an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered or approved by the 
County for the purposes intended;   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Council as follows: 
 

Section 1. Based on information supplied by the Company, it is hereby found, determined and 
declared by the County Council, as follows: 

(a) The Project will constitute a “project” and “economic development property” as said terms 
are referred to and defined in the FILOT Act, and the County’s actions herein will subserve the purposes 
and in all respects conform to the provisions and requirements of the FILOT Act; 

(b) The Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing 
services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; 

(c) The Project will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated 
municipality or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of either; 

(d) The purposes to be accomplished by the Project, i.e., economic development, creation of 
jobs and addition to the tax base of the County, are proper governmental and public purposes; and 

(e) The benefits of the Project are anticipated to be greater than the costs. 

Section 2. The form, terms and provisions of the Fee Agreement presented to this meeting are 
hereby approved and all of the terms and provisions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by reference as if 
the Fee Agreement was set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chairman of County Council and/or the 
County Administrator are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver 
the Fee Agreement in the name of and on behalf of the County, and the Clerk to County Council is hereby 
authorized and directed to attest the same, and thereupon to cause the Fee Agreement to be delivered to the 
Company and cause a copy of the same to be delivered to the Anderson County Auditor, Assessor and 
Treasurer. The Fee Agreement is to be in substantially the form now before this meeting and hereby 
approved, or with such minor changes therein as shall be approved by the Chairman of County Council, 
upon advice of counsel, his execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of his approval of any and 
all changes or revisions therein from the form of Fee Agreement now before this meeting. 

Section 3. The Chairman of County Council, the County Administrator and the Clerk to 
County Council, for and on behalf of the County, are hereby authorized and directed to do any and all things 
necessary to effect the execution and delivery of the Fee Agreement and the performance of all obligations 
of the County thereunder. 

Section 4. All fee-in lieu of ad valorem taxes pursuant to the Fee Agreement received by the 
County for MCIP premises located in the County attributable to MCIP property added on and after 
November 16, 2020 shall be distributed, net of special source revenue credits provided by the County 
pursuant to Section 4-1-175 (“Net Park Fees”) as follows: First, 15% of Net Park Fees shall be deposited to 
Bond Fund created by Ordinance 2018-042 and used as required or permitted thereby, Second, 35% of Net 
Park Fees, and any surplus money under Ordinance 2018-042, shall be deposited to the Capital Renewal and 



3 

Replacement Fund of the County, and Third, remaining Net Park Fees shall be disbursed to each of the 
taxing entitles in the County which levy an old ad valorem property tax in any of the areas comprising the 
County’s portion of the MCIP in the same percentage as is equal to that taxing entity’s percentage of the 
millage rate (and proportion of operating and debt service millage) being levied in the current tax year for 
property tax purposes. 

Section 5. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to be separable and if any 
section, phrase or provisions shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, 
phrases and provisions hereunder. 

Section 6. All ordinances, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent 
of such conflict, hereby repealed. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its 
passage by the County Council. 

 
 ENACTED in meeting duly assembled this ___ day of ______, 2022.  
 
 
 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
        
Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 
 

 
Attest: 
 
 
By:        
            Rusty Burns, County Administrator 
 Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
 
By:       
            Renee Watts, Clerk to Council 
 Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
By:       
 Leon C. Harmon, County Attorney 
 Anderson County, South Carolina 

 
 

 



4 

 
First Reading: ___________, 2022  
Second Reading:    , 2022  
Third Reading: ___________, 2022 
Public Hearing: ___________, 2022  
 
 
 



 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received unanimous approval, by the County Council at its meetings of _________, 2022, _________, 
2022, and  , 2022, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present 
and voted, and an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________________ 
      Renee Watts, Clerk to Council 
   Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
Dated: _________, 2022 
 
 



 

HSB 7040019 V.3  
HSB 7040019 v.5  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND 
SPECIAL SOURCE CREDIT AGREEMENT 

 
 

Between 
 
 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
 

and 
 
 

PROJECT FAITH       
 
 
 

 
Dated as of __________, 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

i 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

SECTION 1.01 DEFINITIONS ............................................................................................................................................ 3 
SECTION 1.02 PROJECT-RELATED INVESTMENTS ........................................................................................................... 6 

ARTICLE II 

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS 

SECTION 2.01 REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS OF THE COUNTY.................................................. 7 
SECTION 2.02 REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS OF THE COMPANY ............................................... 7 

ARTICLE III 

COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT 

SECTION 3.01 THE PROJECT ........................................................................................................................................... 8 
SECTION 3.02 DILIGENT COMPLETION ........................................................................................................................... 8 
SECTION 3.03 FILINGS AND REPORTS ............................................................................................................................. 8 

ARTICLE IV 

FILOT PAYMENTS 

SECTION 4.01 FILOT PAYMENTS ................................................................................................................................. 10 
SECTION 4.02 SPECIAL SOURCE REVENUE CREDITS ..................................................................................................... 11 
SECTION 4.03 FAILURE TO ACHIEVE MINIMUM INVESTMENT REQUIREMENTS............................................................. 12 
SECTION 4.04 REMOVAL OF EQUIPMENT ...................................................................................................................... 13 
SECTION 4.05 FILOT PAYMENTS ON REPLACEMENT PROPERTY .................................................................................. 13 
SECTION 4.06 REDUCTIONS IN PAYMENT OF TAXES UPON DIMINUTION IN VALUE; INVESTMENT MAINTENANCE 

REQUIREMENT ...................................................................................................................................... 13 

ARTICLE V 

PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

SECTION 5.01 CESSATION OF OPERATIONS ................................................................................................................... 15 
SECTION 5.02 RIGHTS TO INSPECT ................................................................................................................................ 15 
SECTION 5.03 CONFIDENTIALITY ................................................................................................................................. 15 
SECTION 5.04 LIMITATION OF COUNTY’S LIABILITY .................................................................................................... 15 
SECTION 5.05 MERGERS, REORGANIZATIONS AND EQUITY TRANSFERS....................................................................... 16 
SECTION 5.06 INDEMNIFICATION COVENANTS ............................................................................................................. 16 
SECTION 5.07 QUALIFICATION IN STATE ...................................................................................................................... 17 
SECTION 5.08 NO LIABILITY OF COUNTY’S PERSONNEL .............................................................................................. 17 
SECTION 5.09 ASSIGNMENT, LEASES OR TRANSFERS ................................................................................................... 17 
SECTION 5.10 ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES ................................................................................................................. 18 
SECTION 5.11 PRIORITY LIEN STATUS .......................................................................................................................... 18 
SECTION 5.12 INTEREST; PENALTIES ............................................................................................................................ 18 
SECTION 5.13 SPONSOR AFFILIATES ............................................................................................................................. 18 



 

ii 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

ARTICLE VI 

DEFAULT 

SECTION 6.01 EVENTS OF DEFAULT ............................................................................................................................. 20 
SECTION 6.02 REMEDIES UPON DEFAULT .................................................................................................................... 20 
SECTION 6.03 REIMBURSEMENT OF LEGAL FEES AND EXPENSES AND OTHER EXPENSES ............................................ 21 
SECTION 6.04 NO WAIVER ........................................................................................................................................... 21 

ARTICLE VII 

MISCELLANEOUS 

SECTION 7.01 NOTICES ................................................................................................................................................. 22 
SECTION 7.02 BINDING EFFECT .................................................................................................................................... 22 
SECTION 7.03 COUNTERPARTS ..................................................................................................................................... 23 
SECTION 7.04 GOVERNING LAW ................................................................................................................................... 23 
SECTION 7.05 HEADINGS .............................................................................................................................................. 23 
SECTION 7.06 AMENDMENTS ........................................................................................................................................ 23 
SECTION 7.07 FURTHER ASSURANCE ........................................................................................................................... 23 
SECTION 7.08 INVALIDITY; CHANGE IN LAWS .............................................................................................................. 23 
SECTION 7.09 TERMINATION BY COMPANY .................................................................................................................. 23 
SECTION 7.10 ENTIRE UNDERSTANDING ...................................................................................................................... 24 
SECTION 7.11 WAIVER ................................................................................................................................................. 24 
SECTION 7.12 BUSINESS DAY ....................................................................................................................................... 24 
 
EXHIBIT A – DESCRIPTION OF LAND 
EXHIBIT B – INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 
EXHIBIT C – INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 
 



 

iii 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

SUMMARY OF CONTENTS OF 
FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT 

 
 

As permitted under Section 12-44-55(B), Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the 
“Code”), the parties have agreed to waive the requirements of Section 12-44-55 of the Code.  The 
following is a summary of the key provisions of this Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit 
Agreement.  This summary is inserted for convenience only and does not constitute a part of this Fee in 
Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement or a summary compliant with Section 12-44-55 of the 
Code.  
 
 

Company Name: [To Come] Project Name: Project Faith 
Projected Investment: $3,825,000 Projected Jobs: 10  
Location (street): [To Come] Tax Map No.: [To Come] 
    
1. FILOT    
 Required Investment: Contract Minimum Investment 

Requirement. 
  

 Investment Period: 5 years Ordinance No./Date:  
 Assessment Ratio: 6% Term (years): 30 years 
 Fixed Millage: 334.27 mills 

 
Net Present Value (if 
yes, discount rate): 

N/A 
 

 Clawback information: See Section 4.03(a) 
 
 

2. MCIP  
 Included in an MCIP: Yes 
 If yes, Name & Date: Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and Business Park (2010 

Park) between Anderson County and Greenville County dated as of December 10, 2010 
  
3. SSRC  
 Total Amount:  
 No. of Years 10 years 
    Yearly Increments: 60% for years 1-5;  

30% for years 6-10 
 Clawback information: See Sections 4.02(d)&(e) and 4.03(a) 

 
4. Other information  

 
 

 
 



 

 

FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND SPECIAL SOURCE CREDIT AGREEMENT (the “Fee 
Agreement”) is made and entered into as of ______________, 2022 by and between ANDERSON 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the “County”), a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 
of the State of South Carolina (the “State”), acting by and through the Anderson County Council (the 
“County Council”) as the governing body of the County, and [PROJECT FAITH], a corporation 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of South Carolina (the “Company”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

1. Title 12, Chapter 44 (the “FILOT Act”), Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as 
amended (the “Code”), authorizes the County to (a) induce industries to locate in the State; (b) encourage 
industries now located in the State to expand their investments and thus make use of and employ manpower, 
products, and other resources of the State; and (c) enter into a fee agreement with entities meeting the 
requirements of the FILOT Act, which identifies certain property of such entities as economic development 
property and provides for the payment of a fee in lieu of tax with respect to such property. 

2. Sections 4-1-170 and 12-44-70 of the Code authorize the County to provide special source 
revenue credit (“Special Source Revenue Credit”) financing secured by and payable solely from revenues 
of the County derived from payments in lieu of taxes for the purposes set forth in Section 4-29-68 of the 
Code, namely:  the defraying of the cost of designing, acquiring, constructing, improving, or expanding the 
infrastructure serving the County and for improved and unimproved real estate, and personal property, 
including but not limited to machinery and equipment, used in the operation of a manufacturing facility or 
commercial enterprise in order to enhance the economic development of the County (collectively, 
“Infrastructure”). 

3. The Company (as a Sponsor, within the meaning of the FILOT Act) desires to provide for 
the acquisition and construction of the Project (as defined herein) to constitute an expansion of the 
Company’s facilities in the County for the manufacture of metal products. 

4. Based on information supplied by the Company, the County Council has evaluated the 
Project based on relevant criteria that include, but are not limited to, the purposes the Project is to 
accomplish, the anticipated dollar amount and nature of the investment, employment to be created or 
maintained, and the anticipated costs and benefits to the County. Pursuant to Section 12-44-40(H)(1) of the 
FILOT Act, the County finds that: (a) the Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the 
County by providing services, employment, recreation, or other public benefits not otherwise adequately 
provided locally; (b) the Project will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated 
municipality therein and to no charge against their general credit or taxing powers; (c) the purposes to be 
accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and public purposes; and (d) the benefits of the 
Project are greater than the costs. 

5. The Project is located, or if not so located as of the date of this Fee Agreement the County 
intends to use its best efforts to so locate the Project, in a joint county industrial or business park created 
with an adjoining county in the State pursuant to agreement entered into pursuant to Section 4-1-170 of the 
Code and Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution. 

6. By enactment of an Ordinance on __________, 2022, the County Council has authorized 
the County to enter into this Fee Agreement with the Company which classifies the Project as Economic 
Development Property under the FILOT Act and provides for the payment of fees in lieu of taxes and the 



 

2 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

provision of Special Source Revenue Credits to reimburse the Company for payment of the cost of certain 
Infrastructure in connection with the Project, all as further described herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the respective representations and 
agreements hereinafter contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 



 

3 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 
Section 1.01  Definitions 
 

The terms that this Article defines shall for all purposes of this Fee Agreement have the meanings 
herein specified, unless the context clearly requires otherwise: 
 
 “Administration Expenses” shall mean the reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the 
County with respect to this Fee Agreement, including without limitation reasonable attorney fees; 
provided, however, that no such expense shall be considered an Administration Expense until the County 
has furnished to the Company a statement in writing indicating the amount of such expense and the 
reason it has been or will be incurred. 
 
 “Affiliate” shall mean any corporation, limited liability company, partnership or other entity 
which owns all or part of the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor Affiliate) or 
which is owned in whole or in part by the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor 
Affiliate) or by any partner, shareholder or owner of the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, 
such Sponsor Affiliate), as well as any subsidiary, affiliate, individual or entity who bears a relationship 
to the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor Affiliate), as described in Section 
267(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 
 
 “Code” shall mean the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended.   
 

“Commencement Date” shall mean the last day of the property tax year during which the Project 
or the first Phase thereof is placed in service, which date shall not be later than the last day of the property 
tax year which is three (3) years from the year in which the County and the Company enter into this Fee 
Agreement. 

“Company” shall mean [Project Faith], a South Carolina corporation, and any surviving, 
resulting, or transferee entity in any merger, consolidation, or transfer of assets; or any other person or 
entity which may succeed to the rights and duties of the Company. 

 “Condemnation Event” shall mean any act of taking by a public or quasi-public authority 
through condemnation, reverse condemnation or eminent domain. 
 

“Contract Minimum Investment Requirement” shall mean, with respect to the Project, 
investment by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates of at least $3,825,000 in Economic Development 
Property subject (non-exempt) to ad valorem taxation (in the absence of this Fee Agreement). 

“Contract Minimum Jobs Requirement” shall mean not less than ten (10) new full-time jobs 
created by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates in the County in connection with the Project.  

“County” shall mean Anderson County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a 
political subdivision of the State, its successors and assigns, acting by and through the County Council as 
the governing body of the County. 

“County Administrator” shall mean the Anderson County Administrator, or the person holding 
any successor office of the County. 



 

4 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

“County Assessor” shall mean the Anderson County Assessor, or the person holding any 
successor office of the County. 

“County Auditor” shall mean the Anderson County Auditor, or the person holding any successor 
office of the County. 

“County Council” shall mean Anderson County Council, the governing body of the County. 

“County Treasurer” shall mean the Anderson County Treasurer, or the person holding any 
successor office of the County. 

“Defaulting Entity” shall have the meaning set forth for such term in Section 6.02(a) hereof. 

“Deficiency Amount” shall have the meaning set forth for such term in Section 4.03(a) hereof. 

“Department” shall mean the South Carolina Department of Revenue. 

“Diminution in Value” in respect of the Project shall mean any reduction in the value, using the 
original fair market value (without regard to depreciation) as determined in Step 1 of Section 4.01 of this 
Fee Agreement, of the items which constitute a part of the Project and which are subject to FILOT 
payments which may be caused by the Company’s or any Sponsor Affiliate’s removal and/or disposal of 
equipment pursuant to Section 4.04 hereof, or by its election to remove components of the Project as a 
result of any damage or destruction or any Condemnation Event with respect thereto. 

“Economic Development Property” shall mean those items of real and tangible personal property 
of the Project which are eligible for inclusion as economic development property under the FILOT Act 
and this Fee Agreement, and selected and identified by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in its 
annual filing of a SCDOR PT-300T or comparable form with the Department (as such filing may be 
amended from time to time) for each year within the Investment Period. 

 “Equipment” shall mean machinery, equipment, furniture, office equipment, and other tangible 
personal property, together with any and all additions, accessions, replacements, and substitutions thereto 
or therefor. 

“Event of Default” shall mean any event of default specified in Section 6.01 hereof. 

“Exemption Period” shall mean the period beginning on the first day of the property tax year 
after the property tax year in which an applicable portion of Economic Development Property is placed in 
service and ending on the Termination Date.  In case there are Phases of the Project, the Exemption 
Period applies to each year’s investment made during the Investment Period. 

“Fee Agreement” shall mean this Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement. 

“FILOT” or “FILOT Payments” shall mean the amount paid or to be paid in lieu of ad valorem 
property taxes as provided herein. 

“FILOT Act” shall mean Title 12, Chapter 44, of the Code, and all future acts successor or 
supplemental thereto or amendatory thereof. 



 

5 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

“FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement” shall mean, with respect to the Project, an 
investment of at least $2,500,000 by the Company, or of at least $5,000,000 by the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates in the aggregate, in Economic Development Property. 

“Improvements” shall mean improvements to the Land, including buildings, building additions, 
roads, sewer lines, and infrastructure, together with any and all additions, fixtures, accessions, 
replacements, and substitutions thereto or therefor. 

“Infrastructure” shall mean infrastructure serving the County and improved or unimproved real 
estate and personal property, including machinery and equipment, used in the operation of the Project, 
within the meaning of Section 4-29-68 of the Code. 

“Investment Period” shall mean, and shall be equal to, the Standard Investment Period. 

“Land” means the land upon which the Project will be located, as described in Exhibit A attached 
hereto, as Exhibit A may be supplemented from time to time in accordance with Section 3.01(c) hereof. 

“MCIP” shall mean (i) the joint county industrial park established pursuant to the terms of the 
MCIP Agreement and (ii) any joint county industrial park created pursuant to a successor park agreement 
delivered by the County and a partner county in accordance with Section 4-1-170 of the MCIP Act, or any 
successor provision, with respect to the Project. 

“MCIP Act” shall mean Title 4, Chapter 1, of the Code, and all future acts successor or 
supplemental thereto or amendatory thereof. 

“MCIP Agreement” shall mean the Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial 
and Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 10, 2010, as amended, between the County and 
Greenville County, South Carolina, as the same may be further amended or supplemented from time to 
time, or such other agreement as the County may enter with respect to the Project to offer the benefits of 
the Special Source Revenue Credits to the Company hereunder. 

 “Phase” or “Phases” in respect of the Project shall mean that the components of the Project are 
placed in service during more than one year during the Investment Period, and the word “Phase” shall 
therefore refer to the applicable portion of the Project placed in service in a given year during the 
Investment Period. 

“Project” shall mean the Land and all the Equipment and Improvements that the Company 
determines to be necessary, suitable or useful for the purposes described in Section 2.02(b) hereof, to the 
extent determined by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate to be a part of the Project and placed in 
service during the Investment Period, and any Replacement Property.  Notwithstanding anything in this 
Fee Agreement to the contrary, the Project shall not include property which will not qualify for the 
FILOT pursuant to Section 12-44-110 of the FILOT Act, including without limitation property which has 
been subject to ad valorem taxation in the State prior to commencement of the Investment Period; 
provided, however, the Project may include (a) modifications which constitute an expansion of the real 
property portion of the Project and (b) the property allowed pursuant to Section 12-44-110(2) of the 
FILOT Act. 

“Removed Components” shall mean components of the Project or portions thereof which the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in its sole discretion, elects to remove from the Project pursuant to 
Section 4.04 hereof or as a result of any Condemnation Event. 



 

6 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

“Replacement Property” shall mean any property which is placed in service as a replacement for 
any item of Equipment or any Improvement previously subject to this Fee Agreement regardless of 
whether such property serves the same functions as the property it is replacing and regardless of whether 
more than one piece of property replaces any item of Equipment or any Improvement to the fullest extent 
that the FILOT Act permits. 

“Special Source Revenue Credits” shall mean the annual special source revenue credits provided 
to the Company pursuant to Section 4.02 hereof. 

“Sponsor Affiliate” shall mean an entity that joins with the Company and that participates in the 
investment in, or financing of, the Project and which meets the requirements under the FILOT Act to be 
entitled to the benefits of this Fee Agreement with respect to its participation in the Project, all as set forth 
in Section 5.13 hereof. 

“Standard Investment Period” shall mean the period beginning with the first day of any purchase 
or acquisition of Economic Development Property and ending five (5) years after the Commencement 
Date.   

“State” shall mean the State of South Carolina. 

“Termination Date” shall mean, with respect to each Phase of the Project, the end of the last day 
of the property tax year which is the 29th year following the first property tax year in which such Phase of 
the Project is placed in service; provided, that the intention of the parties is that the Company will make at 
least 30 annual FILOT payments under Article IV hereof with respect to each Phase of the Project; and 
provided further, that if this Fee Agreement is terminated earlier in accordance with the terms hereof, the 
Termination Date shall mean the date of such termination. 

“Transfer Provisions” shall mean the provisions of Section 12-44-120 of the FILOT Act, as 
amended or supplemented from time to time, concerning, among other things, the necessity of obtaining 
County consent to certain transfers. 

Any reference to any agreement or document in this Article I or otherwise in this Fee Agreement 
shall include any and all amendments, supplements, addenda, and modifications to such agreement or 
document. 

Section 1.02  Project-Related Investments 
 
 The term “investment” or “invest” as used herein shall include not only investments made by the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, but also to the fullest extent permitted by law, those investments 
made by or for the benefit of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate with respect to the Project through 
federal, state, or local grants, to the extent such investments are subject to ad valorem taxes or FILOT 
payments by the Company. 

 
[End of Article I] 



 

7 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

ARTICLE II 
 

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS 
 
Section 2.01  Representations, Warranties, and Agreements of the County 
 
 The County hereby represents, warrants, and agrees as follows: 

(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State and 
acts through the County Council as its governing body. The County has duly authorized the execution and 
delivery of this Fee Agreement and any and all other agreements described herein or therein and has 
obtained all consents from third parties and taken all actions necessary or that the law requires to fulfill its 
obligations hereunder. 

(b) Based upon representations by the Company, the Project constitutes a “project” within 
the meaning of the FILOT Act. 

(c) The County has agreed that each item of real and tangible personal property comprising 
the Project which is eligible to be economic development property under the FILOT Act and that the 
Company selects shall be considered Economic Development Property and is thereby exempt from ad 
valorem taxation in the State. 

(d) The millage rate set forth in Step 3 of Section 4.01(a) hereof is 334.27 mills, which is the 
millage rate in effect with respect to the location of the proposed Project as of June 30, 2021, as permitted 
under Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(d) of the FILOT Act. 

(e) The County will use its reasonable best efforts to cause the Project to be located in a 
MCIP for a term extending at least until the end of the period of FILOT Payments against which a Special 
Source Revenue Credit is to be provided under this Fee Agreement. 

Section 2.02  Representations, Warranties, and Agreements of the Company 
 

The Company hereby represents, warrants, and agrees as follows: 

(a) The Company is organized and in good standing under the laws of the State of South 
Carolina, is duly authorized to transact business in the State, has power to enter into this Fee Agreement, 
and has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement. 

(b) The Company intends to operate the Project as a “project” within the meaning of the 
FILOT Act as in effect on the date hereof. The Company intends to operate the Project for the purpose of 
metal fabrication manufacturing facility and machine shop, and for such other purposes that the FILOT 
Act permits as the Company may deem appropriate. 

(c) The execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement by the County has been instrumental in 
inducing the Company to locate the Project in the County. 

(d) The Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, will use commercially reasonable 
efforts to meet, or cause to be met the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement and the Contract 
Minimum Jobs Requirement within the Investment Period. 

[End of Article II] 



 

8 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

ARTICLE III 
 

COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT 
 
Section 3.01  The Project 
 

(a) The Company intends and expects, together with any Sponsor Affiliate, to (i) construct 
and acquire the Project, (ii) meet the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement, and (iii) create the 
Contract Minimum Jobs Requirement within the Investment Period. The Company anticipates that the 
first Phase of the Project will be placed in service during the calendar year ending December 31, 2022. 

(b) Pursuant to the FILOT Act and subject to Section 4.03 hereof, the Company and the 
County hereby agree that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall identify annually those assets 
which are eligible for FILOT payments under the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement, and which the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate selects for such treatment by listing such assets in its annual PT-300T 
form (or comparable form) to be filed with the Department (as such may be amended from time to time) 
and that by listing such assets, such assets shall automatically become Economic Development Property 
and therefore be exempt from all ad valorem taxation during the Exemption Period. Anything contained 
in this Fee Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall not 
be obligated to complete the acquisition of the Project. However, if the Company, together with any 
Sponsor Affiliates, does not meet the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement within the Investment 
Period, the provisions of Section 4.03 hereof shall control. 

(c) The Company may add to the Land such real property, located in the same taxing District 
in the County as the original Land, as the Company, in its discretion, deems useful or desirable. In such 
event, the Company, at its expense, shall deliver an appropriately revised Exhibit A to this Fee 
Agreement, in form reasonably acceptable to the County. 

Section 3.02  Diligent Completion 
 

The Company agrees to use its reasonable efforts to cause the completion of the Project as soon 
as practicable, but in any event on or prior to the end of the Investment Period. 

Section 3.03  Filings and Reports 
 

(a) Each year during the term of the Fee Agreement, the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates shall deliver to the County, the County Auditor, the County Assessor and the County Treasurer 
a copy of their most recent annual filings with the Department with respect to the Project, not later than 
thirty (30) days following delivery thereof to the Department. 

(b) The Company shall cause a copy of this Fee Agreement, as well as a copy of the 
completed Form PT-443 of the Department, to be filed with the County Auditor and the County Assessor, 
and to their counterparts in the partner county to the MCIP Agreement, the County Administrator and the 
Department within thirty (30) days after the date of execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement by all 
parties hereto. 

(c) Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agree to maintain complete books and 
records accounting for the acquisition, financing, construction, and operation of the Project.  Such books 
and records shall (i) permit ready identification of the various Phases and components thereof; (ii) 
confirm the dates on which each Phase was placed in service; and (iii) include copies of all filings made 



 

9 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

by the Company and any such Sponsor Affiliates in accordance with Section 3.03(a) or (b) above with 
respect to property placed in service as part of the Project. 

[End of Article III] 



 

10 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

ARTICLE IV 
 

FILOT PAYMENTS 
 
Section 4.01  FILOT Payments 
 

(a) Pursuant to Section 12-44-50 of the FILOT Act, the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates, as applicable, are required to make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes to the County with 
respect to the Economic Development Property. Inasmuch as the Company anticipates an initial 
investment of sums sufficient for the Project to qualify for a fee in lieu of tax arrangement under Section 
12-44-50(A)(1) of the FILOT Act, the County and the Company have negotiated the amount of the 
FILOT Payments in accordance therewith. The Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall 
make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes on all Economic Development Property which comprises the 
Project and is placed in service, as follows: the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall 
make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes during the Exemption Period with respect to the Economic 
Development Property or, if there are Phases of the Economic Development Property, with respect to 
each Phase of the Economic Development Property, said payments to be made annually and to be due and 
payable and subject to penalty assessments on the same dates and in the same manner as prescribed by the 
County for ad valorem taxes. The determination of the amount of such annual FILOT Payments shall be 
in accordance with the following procedure (subject, in any event, to the procedures required by the 
FILOT Act): 

Step 1: Determine the fair market value of the Economic Development Property (or Phase of the 
Economic Development Property) placed in service during the Exemption Period using original income 
tax basis for State income tax purposes for any real property and Improvements without regard to 
depreciation (provided, the fair market value of real property, as the FILOT Act defines such term, that 
the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates obtains by construction or purchase in an arms-length 
transaction is equal to the original income tax basis, and otherwise, the determination of the fair market 
value is by appraisal) and original income tax basis for State income tax purposes for any personal 
property less depreciation for each year allowable for property tax purposes, except that no extraordinary 
obsolescence shall be allowable.  The fair market value of the real property for the first year of the 
Exemption Period remains the fair market value of the real property and Improvements for the life of the 
Exemption Period.  The determination of these values shall take into account all applicable property tax 
exemptions that State law would allow to the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates if the property were 
taxable, except those exemptions that Section 12-44-50(A)(2) of the FILOT Act specifically disallows. 

Step 2: Apply an assessment ratio of six percent (6%) to the fair market value in Step 1 to 
establish the taxable value of the Economic Development Property (or each Phase of the Economic 
Development Property) in the year it is placed in service and in each of the 29 years thereafter or such 
longer period of years in which the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement permit the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates to make annual FILOT payments. 

Step 3: Use a millage rate of 334.27 mills during the Exemption Period against the taxable value 
to determine the amount of the FILOT Payments due during the Exemption Period on the applicable 
payment dates. 



 

11 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

(b) In the event that a final order of a court of competent jurisdiction from which no further 
appeal is allowable declares the FILOT Act and/or the herein-described FILOT Payments invalid or 
unenforceable, in whole or in part, for any reason, the parties express their intentions to reform such 
payments so as to effectuate most closely the intent thereof (without increasing the amount of incentives 
being afforded herein) and so as to afford the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the benefits to be 
derived herefrom, the intention of the County being to offer the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates a 
strong inducement to locate the Project in the County.  If the Economic Development Property is deemed 
to be subject to ad valorem taxation, this Fee Agreement shall terminate, and the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates shall pay the County regular ad valorem taxes from the date of termination, but with 
appropriate reductions equivalent to all tax exemptions which are afforded to the Company and such 
Sponsor Affiliates.  Any amount determined to be due and owing to the County from the Company and 
such Sponsor Affiliates, with respect to a year or years for which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates 
previously remitted FILOT Payments to the County hereunder, shall (i) take into account all applicable 
tax exemptions to which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates would be entitled if the Economic 
Development Property was not and had not been Economic Development Property under the Act; and 
(ii) be reduced by the total amount of FILOT Payments the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates had 
made with respect to the Project pursuant to the terms hereof.  

Section 4.02  Special Source Revenue Credits 
 

(a) In accordance with and pursuant to Section 12-44-70 of the FILOT Act and Section 4-1-
175 of the MCIP Act, in order to reimburse the Company for qualifying capital expenditures incurred for 
costs of the Infrastructure during the Standard Investment Period, the Company shall be entitled to 
receive, and the County agrees to provide, annual Special Source Revenue Credits against the Company’s 
FILOT Payments for a period of ten (10) consecutive years of this Fee Agreement. The application of such 
Special Source Revenue Credits shall begin in the same year as the Commencement Date and shall be 
provided by the County in an amount equal to the following percentages of that portion of FILOT Payments 
payable by the Company with respect to the Project (that is, with respect to investment made by the Company 
in the Project during the Standard Investment Period), calculated and applied after payment of the amount 
due the non-host county under the MCIP Agreement: 

i. Sixty percent (60%) for the first five (5) years of FILOT Payments; and  

ii. Thirty percent (30%) for years six (6) through ten (10) of FILOT Payments. 

(b) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, under no circumstances shall the Company 
be entitled to claim or receive any abatement of ad valorem taxes for any portion of the investment in the 
Project for which a Special Source Revenue Credit is taken. 

(c) In no event shall the aggregate amount of all Special Source Revenue Credits claimed by the 
Company exceed the amount expended with respect to the Infrastructure at any point in time. The Company 
shall be responsible for making written annual certification as to compliance with the provisions of the 
preceding sentence through the delivery of a certification in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit 
C.  

(d) Should the Company fail to meet either the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement or 
the Contract Minimum Jobs Requirement by the end of the Standard Investment Period, the Special 
Source Revenue Credits otherwise payable for years six (6) through ten (10) in an amount equal to thirty 
percent (30%) pursuant to Section 4.02(a) hereof shall be reduced to ten percent (10%) for years six (6) 
through ten (10) of the Fee Agreement; provided however, if the Company meets both the Contract 
Minimum Investment Requirement and the Contract Minimum Jobs Requirement by the end of year 



 

12 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

seven (7), the Special Source Revenue Credits the Company is entitled to receive shall be restored in 
accordance with Section 4.02(a) hereof for those remaining years of the term of this Fee Agreement. 
Under no circumstances will the Company be entitled to receive retroactive reimbursement for Special 
Source Revenue Credits reduced in past years in accordance with this Section 4.02(d).  

(e) As provided in Section 4-29-68 of the Code, to the extent any Special Source Revenue 
Credit is taken against fee in lieu of tax payment on personal property, and the personal property is removed 
from the Project at any time during the term of this Fee Agreement (and not replaced with qualifying 
replacement property), the amount of the fee in lieu of taxes due on the personal property for the year in 
which the personal property was removed from the Project shall be due for the two (2) years immediately 
following such removal. 

(f) Each annual Special Source Revenue Credit shall be reflected by the County Auditor or 
other authorized County official or representative on each bill for FILOT Payments sent to the Company 
by the County for each applicable property tax year, by reducing such FILOT Payments otherwise due by 
the amount of the Special Source Revenue Credit to be provided to the Company for such property tax 
year. 

(g) The Special Source Revenue Credits are payable solely from the FILOT Payments, are 
not secured by, or in any way entitled to, a pledge of the full faith, credit or taxing power of the County, 
are not an indebtedness of the County within the meaning of any State constitutional provision or 
statutory limitation, are payable solely from a special source that does not include revenues from any tax 
or license, and are not a pecuniary liability of the County or a charge against the general credit or taxing 
power of the County. 

Section 4.03  Failure to Achieve Minimum Investment Requirement 
 

(a) In the event the Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, fails to meet the FILOT 
Act Minimum Investment Requirement by the end of the Investment Period, this Fee Agreement shall 
terminate and the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates shall pay the County an amount which is equal to 
the excess, if any, of (i) the total amount of ad valorem taxes as would result from taxes levied on the 
Project by the County, municipality or municipalities, school district or school districts, and other 
political units as if the items of property comprising the Economic Development Property were not 
Economic Development Property, but with appropriate reductions equivalent to all tax exemptions and 
abatements to which the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates would be entitled in such a case, through 
and including the end of the Investment Period, over (ii) the total amount of FILOT payments the 
Company and such Sponsor Affiliates have made with respect to the Economic Development Property 
(after taking into account any Special Source Revenue Credits received) (such excess, a “Deficiency 
Amount”) for the period through and including the end of the Investment Period. Any amounts determined 
to be owing pursuant to the foregoing sentence shall be payable to the County on or before the one 
hundred twentieth (120th) day following the last day of the Investment Period.   

 (b) As a condition to the FILOT benefit provided herein, the Company agrees to provide the 
County Administrator, the County Assessor, the County Auditor and the County Treasurer with an annual 
certification as to investment in the Project. Such certification shall be in substantially the form attached 
hereto as Exhibit B, and shall be due no later than the May 1 following the immediately preceding 
December 31 of each year during the Investment Period. 



 

13 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

Section 4.04  Removal of Equipment 
 

Subject, always, to the other terms and provisions of this Fee Agreement, the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates shall be entitled to remove and dispose of components of the Project from the Project 
in its sole discretion with the result that said components shall no longer be considered a part of the 
Project and, to the extent such constitute Economic Development Property, shall no longer be subject to 
the terms of this Fee Agreement.  Economic Development Property is disposed of only when it is 
scrapped or sold or removed from the Project. If it is removed from the Project, it is subject to ad valorem 
property taxes to the extent the Property remains in the State and is otherwise subject to ad valorem 
property taxes. 

Section 4.05  FILOT Payments on Replacement Property 
 

If the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate elects to replace any Removed Components and to 
substitute such Removed Components with Replacement Property as a part of the Economic 
Development Property, or the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate otherwise utilizes Replacement 
Property, then, pursuant and subject to the provisions of Section 12-44-60 of the FILOT Act, the 
Company or such Sponsor Affiliate shall make statutory payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes with regard 
to such Replacement Property in accordance with the following: 

(i) Replacement Property does not have to serve the same function as the 
Economic Development Property it is replacing.  Replacement Property is deemed to replace the 
oldest Economic Development Property subject to the Fee, whether real or personal, which is 
disposed of in the same property tax year in which the Replacement Property is placed in service.  
Replacement Property qualifies as Economic Development Property only to the extent of the 
original income tax basis of Economic Development Property which is being disposed of in the 
same property tax year.  More than one piece of property can replace a single piece of Economic 
Development Property.  To the extent that the income tax basis of the Replacement Property 
exceeds the original income tax basis of the Economic Development Property which it is 
replacing, the excess amount is subject to annual payments calculated as if the exemption for 
Economic Development Property were not allowable.  Replacement Property is entitled to 
treatment under the Fee Agreement for the period of time remaining during the Exemption Period 
for the Economic Development Property which it is replacing; and 

(ii) The new Replacement Property which qualifies for the FILOT shall be 
recorded using its income tax basis, and the calculation of the FILOT shall utilize the millage rate 
and assessment ratio in effect with regard to the original property subject to the FILOT. 

Section 4.06  Reductions in Payment of Taxes Upon Diminution in Value; Investment Maintenance 
Requirement 

 
In the event of a Diminution in Value of the Economic Development Property, the FILOT 

Payment with regard to the Economic Development Property shall be reduced in the same proportion as 
the amount of such Diminution in Value bears to the original fair market value of the Economic 
Development Property as determined pursuant to Step 1 of Section 4.01(a) hereof; provided, however, 
that if at any time subsequent to the end of the Investment Period, the total value of the Project remaining 
in the County based on the original income tax basis thereof (that is, without regard to depreciation), is 
less than the FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement, then beginning with the first payment 
thereafter due hereunder and continuing until the Termination Date, the Project shall no longer be entitled 
to the incentive provided in Section 4.01, and the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate shall therefore 
commence to pay regular ad valorem taxes thereon, calculated as set forth in Section 4.01(b) hereof.   



 

14 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

[End of Article IV] 



 

15 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

ARTICLE V 
 

PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 
 
Section 5.01  Cessation of Operations 
 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Fee Agreement, each of the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges and agrees that County’s obligation to provide the FILOT incentive may 
end, and this Fee Agreement may be terminated by the County, at the County’s sole discretion, if the 
Company ceases operations at the Project; provided, however, that the Special Source Revenue Credits 
provided for in this Fee Agreement shall automatically terminate if the Company ceases operations as set 
forth in this Section 5.01.  For purposes of this Section, “ceases operations” means closure of the facility 
or the cessation of production and shipment of products to customers for a continuous period of twelve 
(12) months.  The provisions of Section 4.03 hereof relating to retroactive payments shall apply, if 
applicable, if this Fee Agreement is terminated in accordance with this Section prior to the end of the 
Investment Period.  Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agrees that if this Fee Agreement is 
terminated pursuant to this subsection, that under no circumstance shall the County be required to refund 
or pay any monies to the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates. 

Section 5.02  Rights to Inspect 
 

The Company agrees that the County and its authorized agents shall have the right at all 
reasonable times and upon prior reasonable notice to enter upon and examine and inspect the Project. The 
County and its authorized agents shall also be permitted, at all reasonable times and upon prior reasonable 
notice, to have access to examine and inspect the Company’s South Carolina property tax returns, as filed. 
The aforesaid rights of examination and inspection shall be exercised only upon such reasonable and 
necessary terms and conditions as the Company shall prescribe, and shall be subject to the provisions of 
Section 5.03 hereof. 

Section 5.03  Confidentiality 
 

The County acknowledges and understands that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates may 
utilize confidential and proprietary processes and materials, services, equipment, trade secrets, and 
techniques (herein “Confidential Information”). In this regard, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates 
may clearly label any Confidential Information delivered to the County “Confidential Information.”  The 
County agrees that, except as required by law, neither the County nor any employee, agent, or contractor 
of the County shall disclose or otherwise divulge any such clearly labeled Confidential Information to any 
other person, firm, governmental body or agency, or any other entity unless specifically required to do so 
by law.  Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledge that the County is subject to the 
South Carolina Freedom of Information Act, and, as a result, must disclose certain documents and 
information on request, absent an exemption. In the event that the County is required to disclose any 
Confidential Information obtained from the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates to any third party, the 
County agrees to provide the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates with as much advance notice as is 
reasonably possible of such requirement before making such disclosure, and to cooperate reasonably with 
any attempts by the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates to obtain judicial or other relief from such 
disclosure requirement. 

Section 5.04  Limitation of County’s Liability 
 

Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, any financial obligation the County may incur 
hereunder, including for the payment of money, shall not be deemed to constitute a pecuniary liability or 



 

16 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

a debt or general obligation of the County (it being intended herein that any obligations of the County 
with respect to the Special Source Revenue Credits shall be payable only from FILOT payments received 
from or payable by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates); provided, however, that nothing herein shall 
prevent the Company from enforcing its rights hereunder by suit for mandamus or specific performance. 

Section 5.05  Mergers, Reorganizations and Equity Transfers 
 

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges that any mergers, reorganizations 
or consolidations of the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates may cause the Project to become ineligible 
for negotiated fees in lieu of taxes under the FILOT Act absent compliance by the Company and such 
Sponsor Affiliates with the Transfer Provisions; provided that, to the extent provided by Section 12-44-
120 of the FILOT Act or any successor provision, any financing arrangements entered into by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliates with respect to the Project and any security interests granted by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliates in connection therewith shall not be construed as a transfer for 
purposes of the Transfer Provisions.  Notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, it 
is not intended in this Fee Agreement that the County shall impose transfer restrictions with respect to the 
Company, any Sponsor Affiliates or the Project as are any more restrictive than the Transfer Provisions. 

Section 5.06  Indemnification Covenants 
 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Fee Agreement or in any other agreements 
with the County, the Company agrees to indemnify, defend and save the County, its County Council 
members, elected officials, officers, employees, servants and agents (collectively, the “Indemnified 
Parties”) harmless against and from all claims by or on behalf of any person, firm or corporation arising 
from the conduct or management of, or from any work or thing done on the Project or the Land by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, their members, officers, shareholders, employees, servants, 
contractors, and agents during the Term, and, the Company further, shall indemnify, defend and save the 
Indemnified Parties harmless against and from all claims arising during the Term from (i) entering into 
and performing its obligations under this Fee Agreement, (ii) any condition of the Project, (iii) any breach 
or default on the part of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in the performance of any of its 
obligations under this Fee Agreement, (iv) any act of negligence of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate 
or its agents, contractors, servants, employees or licensees during the Exemption Period, (v) any act of 
negligence of any assignee or lessee of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, or of any agents, 
contractors, servants, employees or licensees of any assignee or lessee of the Company or any Sponsor 
Affiliate, or (vi) any violation of environmental laws during the Exemption Period with respect to the 
Project by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate or its agents, contractors, servants, employees or 
licensees.  The Company shall indemnify, defend and save the County harmless from and against all costs 
and expenses incurred in or in connection with any such claim arising as aforesaid or in connection with 
any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice from the County, the Company shall defend it 
in any such action, prosecution or proceeding with legal counsel acceptable to the County (the approval of 
which shall not be unreasonably withheld). 

(b) Notwithstanding the fact that it is the intention of the parties that the Indemnified Parties 
shall not incur pecuniary liability by reason of the terms of this Fee Agreement, or the undertakings 
required of the County hereunder, by reason of the granting of the FILOT, by reason of the execution of 
this Fee Agreement, by the reason of the performance of any act requested of it by the Company or any 
Sponsor Affiliate, or by reason of the County’s relationship to the Project or by the operation of the 
Project by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, including all claims, liabilities or losses arising in 
connection with the violation of any statutes or regulations pertaining to the foregoing, nevertheless, if the 
County or any of the other Indemnified Parties should incur any such pecuniary liability, then in such 
event the Company shall indemnify, defend and hold them harmless against all claims by or on behalf of 



 

17 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

any person, firm or corporation, arising out of the same, and all costs and expenses incurred in connection 
with any such claim or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice, the 
Company shall defend them in any such action or proceeding with legal counsel acceptable to the County 
(the approval of which shall not be unreasonably withheld); provided, however, that such indemnity shall 
not apply to the extent that any such claim is attributable to (i) the grossly negligent acts or omissions or 
willful misconduct of the County, its agents, officers or employees, or (ii) any breach of this Fee 
Agreement by the County. 

(c) Notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the above-referenced 
covenants insofar as they pertain to costs, damages, liabilities or claims by any Indemnified Party 
resulting from any of the above-described acts of or failure to act by the Company or any Sponsor 
Affiliate, shall survive any termination of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 5.07  Qualification in State 
 

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates warrant that it is duly qualified to do business in 
the State, and covenants that it will continue to be so qualified so long as it operates any portion of the 
Project. 

Section 5.08  No Liability of County’s Personnel 
 

All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the County contained herein 
shall be deemed to be covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the County and 
shall be binding upon any member of the County Council or any elected official, officer, agent, servant or 
employee of the County only in his or her official capacity and not in his or her individual capacity, and 
no recourse shall be had for the payment of any moneys hereunder against any member of the governing 
body of the County or any elected official, officer, agent, servants or employee of the County and no 
recourse shall be had against any member of the County Council or any elected official, officer, agent, 
servant or employee of the County for the performance of any of the covenants and agreements of the 
County herein contained or for any claims based thereon except solely in their official capacity. 

Section 5.09  Assignment, Leases or Transfers 
 

The County agrees that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates may at any time (a) transfer all 
or any of their rights and interests under this Fee Agreement or with respect to all or any part of the 
Project, or (b) enter into any lending, financing, leasing, security, or similar arrangement or succession of 
such arrangements with any financing or other entity with respect to this Fee Agreement or all or any part 
of the Project, including without limitation any sale-leaseback, equipment lease, build-to-suit lease, 
synthetic lease, nordic lease, defeased tax benefit or transfer lease, assignment, sublease or similar 
arrangement or succession of such arrangements, regardless of the identity of the income tax owner of 
such portion of the Project, whereby the transferee in any such arrangement leases the portion of the 
Project in question to the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate or operates such assets for the Company or 
any Sponsor Affiliate or is leasing the portion of the Project in question from the Company or any 
Sponsor Affiliate.  In order to preserve the FILOT benefit afforded hereunder with respect to any portion 
of the Project so transferred, leased, financed, or otherwise affected: (i) except in connection with any 
transfer to an Affiliate of the Company or of any Sponsor Affiliate, or transfers, leases, or financing 
arrangements pursuant to clause (b) above (as to which such transfers the County hereby consents), the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall obtain the prior consent or subsequent 
ratification of the County which consent or subsequent ratification may be granted by the County in its 
sole discretion; (ii) except when a financing entity which is the income tax owner of all or part of the 
Project is the transferee pursuant to clause (b) above and such financing entity assumes in writing the 



 

18 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

obligations of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, hereunder, or when the County 
consents in writing, no such transfer shall affect or reduce any of the obligations of the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates hereunder; (iii) to the extent the transferee or financing entity shall become obligated 
to make FILOT Payments hereunder, the transferee shall assume the then current basis of, as the case may 
be, the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates (or prior transferee) in the portion of the Project transferred; 
(iv) the Company or applicable Sponsor Affiliate, transferee or financing entity shall, within sixty (60) 
days thereof, furnish or cause to be furnished to the County and the Department a true and complete copy 
of any such transfer agreement; and (v) the Company, the Sponsor Affiliates and the transferee shall 
comply with all other requirements of the Transfer Provisions. 

Subject to County consent when required under this Section, and at the expense of the Company 
or any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, the County agrees to take such further action or execute such 
further agreements, documents, and instruments as may be reasonably required to effectuate the 
assumption by any such transferee of all or part of the rights of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate 
under this Fee Agreement and/or any release of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate pursuant to this 
Section.   

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges that such a transfer of an interest 
under this Fee Agreement or in the Project may cause all or part of the Project to become ineligible for the 
FILOT benefit afforded hereunder or result in penalties under the FILOT Act absent compliance by the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the Transfer Provisions.   

Section 5.10  Administration Expenses 
 

The Company agrees to pay any Administration Expenses to the County when and as they shall 
become due, but in no event later than the date which is the earlier of any payment date expressly 
provided for in this Fee Agreement or the date which is forty-five (45) days after receiving written notice 
from the County, accompanied by such supporting documentation as may be necessary to evidence the 
County’s or Indemnified Party’s right to receive such payment, specifying the nature of such expense and 
requesting payment of same. 

Section 5.11  Priority Lien Status 
 

The County’s right to receive FILOT payments hereunder shall have a first priority lien status 
pursuant to Sections 12-44-90(E) and (F) of the FILOT Act and Chapters 4, 49, 51, 53, and 54 of Title 12 
of the Code. 

Section 5.12  Interest; Penalties 
 

In the event the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate should fail to make any of the payments to the 
County required under this Fee Agreement, then the item or installment so in default shall continue as an 
obligation of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate until the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate shall 
have fully paid the amount, and the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agree, as applicable, to pay the 
same with interest thereon at a rate, unless expressly provided otherwise herein and in the case of FILOT 
payments, of 5% per annum, compounded monthly, to accrue from the date on which the payment was 
due and, in the case of FILOT payments, at the rate for non-payment of ad valorem taxes under State law 
and subject to the penalties the law provides until payment. 
 
Section 5.13  Sponsor Affiliates 
 



 

19 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

The Company may designate from time to time any Sponsor Affiliates pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections 12-44-30(20) and 12-44-130 of the FILOT Act, which Sponsor Affiliates shall join with the 
Company and make investments with respect to the Project, or participate in the financing of such 
investments, and shall agree to be bound by the terms and provisions of this Fee Agreement pursuant to 
the terms of a written joinder agreement with the County and the Company, in form reasonably 
acceptable to the County.  The Company shall provide the County and the Department with written notice 
of any Sponsor Affiliate designated pursuant to this Section within ninety (90) days after the end of the 
calendar year during which any such Sponsor Affiliate has placed in service any portion of the Project, in 
accordance with Section 12-44-130(B) of the FILOT Act. 
 

[End of Article V] 



 

20 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

ARTICLE VI 
 

DEFAULT 
 
Section 6.01  Events of Default 
 

The following shall be “Events of Default” under this Fee Agreement, and the term “Event of 
Default” shall mean, whenever used with reference to this Fee Agreement, any one or more of the 
following occurrences: 

(a) Failure by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate to make the FILOT Payments described 
in Section 4.01 hereof, or any other amounts payable to the County under this Fee Agreement when due, 
which failure shall not have been cured within thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice thereof 
from the County; provided, however, that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall be entitled to all 
redemption rights granted by applicable statutes; or 

(b) A representation or warranty made by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate hereunder 
which is deemed materially incorrect when deemed made; or  

(c) Failure by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate to perform any of the terms, conditions, 
obligations, or covenants hereunder (other than those under (a) above), which failure shall continue for a 
period of thirty (30) days after written notice from the County to the Company and such Sponsor Affiliate 
specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, unless the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate 
shall have instituted corrective action within such time period and is diligently pursuing such action until 
the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period shall be extended to cover such additional period 
during which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate is diligently pursuing corrective action; or 

(d) Failure by the County to perform any of the terms, conditions, obligations, or covenants 
hereunder, which failure shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice from the 
Company to the County and any Sponsor Affiliates specifying such failure and requesting that it be 
remedied, unless the County shall have instituted corrective action within such time period and is 
diligently pursuing such action until the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period shall be 
extended to cover such additional period during which the County is diligently pursuing corrective action. 
 
Section 6.02  Remedies Upon Default 
 

(a) Whenever any Event of Default by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate (the 
“Defaulting Entity”) shall have occurred and shall be continuing, the County may take any one or more of 
the following remedial actions as to the Defaulting Entity, only: 

(i) terminate this Fee Agreement; or 
 

(ii) take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to 
collect the amounts due hereunder.   

In no event shall the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate be liable to the County or otherwise for 
monetary damages resulting from the Company’s (together with any Sponsor Affiliates) failure to meet 
the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement other than as expressly set forth in this Fee Agreement. 

 In addition to all other remedies provided herein, the failure to make FILOT payments shall give 
rise to a lien for tax purposes as provided in Section 12-44-90 of the FILOT Act.  In this regard, and 



 

21 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the County may exercise the remedies 
that general law (including Title 12, Chapter 49 of the Code) provides with regard to the enforced 
collection of ad valorem taxes to collect any FILOT payments due hereunder. 

(b) Whenever any Event of Default by the County shall have occurred or shall be continuing, 
the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate may take one or more of the following actions: 

(i) bring an action for specific enforcement; 
 

(ii) terminate this Fee Agreement as to the acting party; or 
 

(iii) in case of a materially incorrect representation or warranty, take such action as is 
appropriate, including legal action, to recover its damages, to the extent allowed by law. 

Section 6.03  Reimbursement of Legal Fees and Expenses and Other Expenses 
 

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default hereunder by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, 
should the County be required to employ attorneys or incur other reasonable expenses for the collection of 
payments due hereunder or for the enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation or 
agreement, the County shall be entitled, within thirty (30) days of demand therefor, to reimbursement of 
the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other reasonable expenses so incurred.   

Section 6.04  No Waiver 
 

No failure or delay on the part of any party hereto in exercising any right, power, or remedy 
hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right, 
power, or remedy preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power, 
or remedy hereunder. No waiver of any provision hereof shall be effective unless the same shall be in 
writing and signed by the waiving party hereto. 
 

[End of Article VI] 



 

22 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

ARTICLE VII 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 
Section 7.01  Notices 
 

Any notice, election, demand, request, or other communication to be provided under this Fee 
Agreement shall be effective when delivered to the party named below or when deposited with the United 
States Postal Service, certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows (or 
addressed to such other address as any party shall have previously furnished in writing to the other party), 
except where the terms hereof require receipt rather than sending of any notice, in which case such 
provision shall control: 

 
If to the Company: 
 
[Project Faith] 
Attn:   
 
 
 
 
With a copy to: 
 
Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A. 
Attn: J. Philip Land, Jr. (pland@hsblawfirm.com) 
One North Main Street 
2nd Floor 
Greenville, South Carolina 29601   
 
If to the County: 
 

 Anderson County 
Attn:  County Administrator 

 101 S. Main Street 
Anderson, South Carolina 29624 
 
With a copy to: 
 
Anderson County Attorney 
101 S. Main Street  
Anderson, South Carolina 29624 

 
Section 7.02  Binding Effect 
 

This Fee Agreement and each document contemplated hereby or related hereto shall be binding 
upon and inure to the benefit of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, the County, and their respective 
successors and assigns.  In the event of the dissolution of the County or the consolidation of any part of 
the County with any other political subdivision or the transfer of any rights of the County to any other 
such political subdivision, all of the covenants, stipulations, promises, and agreements of this Fee 
Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the successors of the County from time to time and any 



 

23 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

entity, officer, board, commission, agency, or instrumentality to whom or to which any power or duty of 
the County has been transferred. 

Section 7.03  Counterparts 
 

This Fee Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and all of the counterparts 
taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. 

Section 7.04  Governing Law 
 

This Fee Agreement and all documents executed in connection herewith shall be construed in 
accordance with and governed by the laws of the State. 

Section 7.05  Headings 
 

The headings of the articles and sections of this Fee Agreement are inserted for convenience only 
and shall not be deemed to constitute a part of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 7.06  Amendments 
 

The provisions of this Fee Agreement may only be modified or amended in writing by any 
agreement or agreements entered into between the parties. 

Section 7.07  Further Assurance 
 

From time to time, and at the expense of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, the County 
agrees to execute and deliver to the Company and any such Sponsor Affiliates such additional instruments 
as the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates may reasonably request and as are authorized by law and 
reasonably within the purposes and scope of the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement to effectuate the 
purposes of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 7.08  Invalidity; Change in Laws 
 

In the event that the inclusion of property as Economic Development Property or any other issue 
is unclear under this Fee Agreement, the County hereby expresses its intention that the interpretation of 
this Fee Agreement shall be in a manner that provides for the broadest inclusion of property under the 
terms of this Fee Agreement and the maximum incentive permissible under the FILOT Act, to the extent 
not inconsistent with any of the explicit terms hereof.  If any provision of this Fee Agreement is declared 
illegal, invalid, or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions hereof shall be unimpaired, and 
such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision shall be reformed to effectuate most closely the legal, 
valid, and enforceable intent thereof and so as to afford the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the 
maximum benefits to be derived herefrom, it being the intention of the County to offer the Company and 
any Sponsor Affiliates the strongest inducement possible, within the provisions of the FILOT Act, to 
locate the Project in the County.  In case a change in the FILOT Act or South Carolina laws eliminates or 
reduces any of the restrictions or limitations applicable to the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates and 
the FILOT incentive, the parties agree that the County will give expedient and full consideration to 
reformation of this Fee Agreement, and, if the County Council so decides, to provide the Company and 
any Sponsor Affiliates with the benefits of such change in the FILOT Act or South Carolina laws. 

Section 7.09  Termination by Company 
 



 

24 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

The Company is authorized to terminate this Fee Agreement at any time with respect to all or part 
of the Project upon providing the County with thirty (30) days’ written notice; provided, however, that (i) 
any monetary obligations existing hereunder and due and owing at the time of termination to a party 
hereto (including without limitation any amounts owed with respect to Section 4.03 hereof); and (ii) any 
provisions which are intended to survive termination shall survive such termination. In the year following 
such termination, all property shall be subject to ad valorem taxation or such other taxation or fee in lieu 
of taxation that would apply absent this Fee Agreement. The Company’s obligation to make FILOT 
Payments under this Fee Agreement shall terminate in the year following the year of such termination 
pursuant to this section. 

Section 7.10  Entire Understanding 
 

This Fee Agreement expresses the entire understanding and all agreements of the parties hereto 
with each other, and neither party hereto has made or shall be bound by any agreement or any 
representation to the other party which is not expressly set forth in this Fee Agreement or in certificates 
delivered in connection with the execution and delivery hereof. 

Section 7.11  Waiver 
 

Either party may waive compliance by the other party with any term or condition of this Fee 
Agreement only in a writing signed by the waiving party. 

Section 7.12  Business Day 
 

In the event that any action, payment, or notice is, by the terms of this Fee Agreement, required to 
be taken, made, or given on any day which is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday in the jurisdiction in 
which the person obligated to act is domiciled, such action, payment, or notice may be taken, made, or 
given on the following business day with the same effect as if given as required hereby, and no interest 
shall accrue in the interim. 

[End of Article VII] 
 



 

25 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County, acting by and through the County Council, has caused 

this Fee Agreement to be executed in its name and behalf by the County Chairman and to be attested by 
the Clerk of the County Council; and the Company has caused this Fee Agreement to be executed by its 
duly authorized officer, all as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 
 
 
   ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
 
   By:      

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 
 

Attest: 
 
 

By:_   
Renee Watts, Clerk to Council 
Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
 
 
 

[Signature Page 1 to Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement] 

 
 



 

26 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

 
 [PROJECT FAITH] 
 
        
 By:         
 Its:         

 

 

 

[Signature Page 2 to Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement] 

 

 



 

A-1 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

EXHIBIT A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

[To Come] 

 



 

B-1 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

EXHIBIT B 
 
 

INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 
 
 

 I __________, the __________ of __________ (the “Company”), do hereby certify in connection 
with Section 4.03 of the Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement dated as of 
__________, 2022 between Anderson County, South Carolina and the Company (the “Agreement”), as 
follows: 
 
 (1) The total investment made by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates in the Project 
during the calendar year ending December 31, 20__ was $___________. 
 
 (2) The cumulative total investment made by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates in the 
Project from the period beginning __________, 20__ (that is, the beginning date of the Investment 
Period) and ending December 31, 20__, is $__________. 
 
 All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the 
Agreement. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this _____ day of __________, 20__. 
 
 
             
      Name:       
      Its:       

 
 



 

C-1 
HSB 7040019 v.5  

EXHIBIT C 
 

INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 
 
 

 I __________, the __________ of __________ (the “Company”), do hereby certify in connection 
with Section 4.02 of the Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement dated as of 
__________, 2022 between Anderson County, South Carolina and the Company (the “Agreement”), as 
follows: 
 
 (1) As of the date hereof, the aggregate amount of Special Source Revenue Credits previously 
received by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates is $_________. 
 
 (2) As of December 31, 20__, the aggregate amount of investment in costs of Infrastructure 
incurred by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates during the Investment Period is not less than 
$_________. 

 
 (3) [Use only if expenditures for personal property will be used to account for Special 
Source Revenue Credits.]  Of the total amount set forth in (2) above, $________ pertains to the 
investment in personal property, including machinery and equipment, at the Project.  The applicable 
personal property, and associated expenditures, are listed below: 
 

Personal Property Description  Investment Amount 
   
   
   
   

 
 All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the 
Agreement. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this _____ day of __________, 20__. 
 
       
             
      Name:       
      Its:       
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-002 

             AN ORDIANCE TO PROVIDE FOR REDISTRICTING OF THE SEVEN 
COUNTY COUNCIL DISTRICTS OF ANDERSON COUNTY, AS TO 
POPULATION, PRIOR TO THE NEXT GENERAL ELECTION CYCLE 
FOLLOWING THE ADOPTION BY THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
OF THE 2020 DECENNIAL CENSUS, PURSUANT TO SECTION 4-9-90, 
CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, 1976, AS AMENDED; AND 
OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 

     WHEREAS, Chapter 9 of Title 4, South Carolina Code, 1976, as amended (the “Code”), 
provides for the form and structure of county government in South Carolina: and, 

 

     WHEREAS, pursuant to such Chapter 9 of Title 4 of the Code, the County Council (the 
“County Council”) of Anderson County (the “County”) is currently organized in seven (7) 
single member County Council districts, numbered 1 through 7, inclusive, as duly directed by 
the voters of Anderson County pursuant to referendum; and  

 

     WHEREAS, Section 4-9-90 of the Code requires that all County Council districts must 
be reapportioned as to population by the County Council within a reasonable time prior to the 
next scheduled general election which follows the adoption by the State of South Carolina of 
each Federal Decennial Census; and  

 

     WHEREAS,  the Act requires that the population variance between defined County 
Council election districts, pursuant to and following such reapportionment, shall not exceed 
ten percent (10%); and 

 

     WHEREAS, the State of South Carolina had now adopted the 2020 Federal Decennial 
Census; and, 

 

     WHEREAS, the next scheduled general election affecting Anderson County will be in 
November, 2022, with the primaries therefor scheduled for the Spring of 2022; and  

 

     WHEREAS, Anderson County Council therefore must reapportion the County Council 
districts of the County, pursuant to the Act, in sufficient time to conduct the aforementioned 
primaries.   



            NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 

 

     1.     In accordance with and pursuant to Section 4-9-90, South Carolina Code, 
1976, as amended, and the 2020 Federal Decennial Census, as adopted by the State of 
South Carolina, the composition of the seven (7) current Anderson County Council 
districts is hereby revised, approved, and designated as shown on the attached map of 
Anderson County, South Carolina, and shall be as shown and designated on such map 
which is likewise approved, marked as Exhibit A, as the official designation of the 
seven (7) reapportioned Anderson County Council districts, to be effective 
immediately upon 3rd reading and approval of this Ordinance all as to be utilized for 
the November 2022 general election and all attendant primary activity thereto. 

 

     2.     Anderson County Staff is hereby directed to prepare such hard copy and other 
media illustrations and representations of the attached map as are necessary to provide 
official notice of the reapportioned Anderson County Council districts, effective as noted 
herein and as to be utilized during the November 2022 general election and its attendant 
primaries, to the State Government of the State of South Carolina, and to all other 
interested and affected parties and individuals. 

 

     3.     Should any part or provision of the Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 
rest and remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

 

     4.     All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of the County inconsistent herewith 
are hereby, to the extent of such inconsistency only, revoked, repealed, and superseded. 

 

     5.     This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect after 3rd reading and 
enactment by County Council. 

 

 

THE REMAINDER OF THE PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

 

 



Ordained this ___ day of ____________ 2022, in meeting duly assembled. 

 

ATTTEST: 

 

_______________________                                               ____________________________ 

Rusty Burns                                                                          Tommy Dunn, Chairman 

Anderson County Administrator 

 

_______________________ 

Renee Watts 

Clerk to Council 

 

Approved As To Form: 

 

________________________ 

Leon Harmon 

Anderson County Attorney 

 

 

First Reading:         _________________ 

Second Reading:     _________________ 

Third Reading:       _________________ 

Public Hearing:      _________________ 

                               _________________ 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

REDISTRICTING MAP 
 





                 
                
MEMORANDUM 
ADMINISTRATOR’S OFFICE 

 

Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District 5 
 
Brett Sanders 
V. Chairman, District 4 

John B. Wright, Jr. 
Council District 1 
 
Glenn A. Davis 
Council District 2 

Ray Graham 
Council District 3  
 
Jimmy Davis 
Council District 6 

Cindy Wilson 
Council District 7 
 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 | www.andersoncountysc.org 
 

 

 
 
 

Rusty Burns | County Administrator 
rburns@andersoncountysc.org 

 
DATE:   12/30/2021 
 
TO:   RUSTY BURNS 

County Administrator 
ALL COUNCIL MEMBERS 

 
FROM:   STEVE NEWTON 

Governmental Affairs 
 
CC:   RENEE WATTS 

Clerk to Council 
 
SUBJECT:   COUNTY COUNCIL REDISTRICTING MAP 

Submittals for 1st Reading 
 
 
Submitted with this cover memo please find: 

• A handout version of the proposed redistricting map, showing all districts 
• A data tally sheet 
• Individual handout maps for each of the seven individual council districts 

 
This draft redistricting map was prepared by staff in consultation with the S.C. Revenue 
and Fiscal Affairs Office (RFA).  RFA staff has reviewed this redistricting and is of the 
opinion that it appears in compliance with all relevant state and federal laws, and is in 
keeping with the redistricting criteria adopted by our County Council. 
 
Staff requests that Council adopt this map on 1st reading, followed by a scheduled public 
hearing at an appropriate point before third and final reading. 
 
This map can be amended by act of Council as we move through the process. Minor changes 
are appropriate so long as they are not in violation of laws or contrary to redistricting 
criteria.  For example: we may find before final adoption that some changes can be made 
which will improve the placement of boundaries, or avoid splitting of a voting precinct. 



                  

 

With that said—any wholesale changes would mean, in essence, a total redrawing of all 
existing council districts, and I would caution against such barring a compelling reason for 
doing so. Staff has made every effort to maintain the existing composition of the current 
district boundaries, and changes were made only where necessary or advisable. 
 
Immediately after 1st reading, staff will make the maps available for public inspection on 
the county’s website.  In addition, printed large versions will be available for public 
inspection at the Historic Courthouse and other locations to be announced.  Any proposed 
changes to the map prior to adoption will likewise be made available and publicized via 
news release and social media distribution. 
 
Any questions from your constituents can be referred to my office.  I can be reached at (864) 
260-1010, or via email to snewton@andersoncountysc.org    
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:snewton@andersoncountysc.org


ONE

TWO

THREE

FOUR

FIVE

SIX

SEVEN§̈¦85
")81

")81

")88

")24

")20

£¤76

£¤178 £¤29

")187

£¤29

£¤76

Legend
Lakes

Highways

EXISTING Council District Boundaries

Proposed NEW Council District Areas
One

Two

Three

Four

Five

Six

Seven

Anderson County Redistricting Map
Current as of 1st Reading

January 4, 2022



District
Perfect District 

Size

Proposed 
District 

Population
Over/(Under) % Deviation

NH DOJ Black 
Population*

NH DOJ Black 
Percentage*

One 29,103 27,956 (1,147) -3.9% 3,466 12.40%
Two 29,103 27,754 (1,349) -4.6% 13,762 49.59%

Three 29,103 27,696 (1,407) -4.8% 3,076 11.11%
Four 29,103 29,546 443 1.5% 3,134 10.61%
Five 29,103 29,755 652 2.2% 4,551 15.29%
Six 29,103 30,518 1,415 4.9% 2,289 7.50%

Seven 29,103 30,493 1,390 4.8% 2,580 8.46%
203,718 32,858 16.13%

Maximum Allowable District Size: 30,558
Maximum Allowable District Size: 27,648

* Calculated to ensure compliance with relevant sections of the Voting Rights Act

Anderson County Redistricting Map, Version Current as of 1st Reading (January 4, 2022)
Data Tally Sheet



I

M
ID

W
AY

HIG
HW

AY
 2

9

M
AIN

WHITNER

J

LI
BE

R
TY

GRIFFIN

PINE

RIVER

H
IG

H
W

AY
 8

1

ORR

O
LD

 W
IL

LI
AM

ST
O

N

COX

AMITY

MAJOR

C

CLEMSON

LONG

STR
IN

G
ER

I-85 SOUTHBOUND

I-85 NORTHBOUND

MARKET

E

CA
LH

O
UN

CO
NC

O
RD

F

WHITEN

REED

GR
EE

NV
IL

LE

PEAR
M

AN
 D

AIRY

EAST WEST

WHITEHALL

M
AR

ET
T

KINGS

K

R

M
U

R
R

AY

BROWN

BELHAVENMIC
HE

LIN

P

W
IL

LI
NG

HA
M

Q

BLUE RIDGE

SNOW

CHEDDAR

BROADWAY SCHOOL

BLECKLEY

H

LEBANON

BREAZEALE

D
O

R
C

H
E

ST
ER

NORTH

CATHEY

B

HARRIS BRIDGE

BELTON

BOWLAN

CRESTVIEW

JACKSON

BOWEN

LEE

COX LAKE

FRANKLIN

STANDRIDGE

MAULDIN

HOPEWELL

SL
AT

ER

C
AM

SO
N

ASHLEY

LIN
D

ALE

OLD MILL

DALRYM
PLE M

C
G

EE

HA
RR

IE
TT

WILLIAMSTON

ANDERSON

SA
ND

Y

JAM
ES COXM

C
D

U
FFIE

SIMPSON

W
IL

SO
N

H
EM

B
R

EE

MCCLELLAN DUNLAP

WELPINE

LEW
IS

BROOKS

G
O

SS
ET

T

PEA C
R

EEK

BROGAN
LYN

N

MILLGATE

VANDIVER

LI
TT

LE
 C

RE
EK

M
AN

SE
 J

O
LL

Y

SINGER

MCCOMBS

H I T
AYLOR

ROGER BOLT

C
O

B
BS

OAK HILL

BELHAVEN ROAD

BELLVIEW

BOLT

PO
PE

H
AM

M
O

N
D

HOBBY

HURRIC
AN

E

JO
H

N
S

GLENWOOD

FOX

PLAN
TATIO

N

LANE

OPT

EA
ST

VIE
W

MIZE

UNIONNAB

ELLA

EVERG
REEN

BELL

HOBSON
HA

LE
Y

H
ER

M
AN

 BR
O

O
KS

FAN
T

H
AYN

IE M
ILL

DOROTHY

AU
TU

M
N

DIXON

ILA

DEVON

ROGERS

BE
LK

CARVER

SHACKLEBURG

PH
IL

 W
AT

SO
N

MILL

KEO
NE

BREE

KING

PLUM

EDGEBROOK
W

H
IT

E

JASMIN

PINELAND MEADOWS

SAYRE

OAK

FAIR

SALEM CHURCH

RIO

LADYS

M
ITC

H
ELL

IVY

PARK

SELWYN

HI
LL

TO
P

THOMPSON

PAGE

W
YCO

M
BE

C C

KAY

SADDLE

no
ne

KIRSCH

DANNE BANNISTER

SI
N

G
LE

TR
EE

W
AC

CA
M

AW

P AND N

SHIRLANE

W
O

O
DL

AK
E

DAVIS

BELTLINE

ALIS
H

A

PIN
E B

ARK

WINDWARD

CEDAR

BI
G

 W
O

O
D

S

WEBB

NA LIN

SLEEPY

M
AR

IN
ER

JALAN

SAM MCGEE

OSBORNE

ARCADIA

MAPLE

BALTIC

ROBIN

BOOKER

CAMPBELL

QUARRY

CANTERBURY

H
IG

H
 C

PUTT PUTT

MOORE

GREENLAND

M
EADOW

SO
RE

N

SER
VIC

E

ESKEW

LINMAR

SYLVIA

ARBOR
CHAD

PI
N

IO
N

RICHEY

FO
X 

C
R

EE
K

FAIRMONT

YO
R

K
LAKE

W
O

O
D

QUAIL

CLARIDGE

LIN
DA

LARI

ST JAMES

BETA

JEB STUARTO
LIVE

BAREFO
OT

STEEPLECHASE

STAR

THORNEHILL
OLD

 IV
Y

RIDGE

COTTONLAND

GENTRY

JOWERS

SENTINEL

NA
LL

EY

SMITH

M
O

TES

RUSH
TO

N

PRICE

DONALDSON

KILSPR
IN

G
S

HUNTERS

TRUDY
GRAYLYN

TI
N

SL
EY

LA
UR

EL
M

ATTHEW

BRANCHWOOD

METZ

M
U

R
IE

L

AMANDA

TERRY

COVE

DA
NA

WALK
ER

DU
RS

EL
Y

HERITAGE

SOCIETY
KELLY

O
N

EA
L

no
ne none

none

AM
ITY

CLEMSON

BROWN

OAK

M
CG

EE

K

DAVIS

Proposed Council District One
27,956 Persons; DOJ Minority Percentage 12.40%

Current as of 1st Reading
January 4, 2022

Legend
Highways

Roads

EXISTING Council District Boundaries

Proposed NEW District One Area



I

M
AIN

RIVER
KE

YS

MAJOR

BOLT

AMITY

M
UR

RA
Y

HAYES

WHITNER

ABBEVILLE

MARTIN

J

BELTON

M
IC

H
E

LI
N

AIR
LIN

E

HIG
HW

AY
 29

ORR

LEWIS

TRAVIS

C

WHITEHALL

H
IG

H
W

AY
 4

13

MARKET

E

M
AS

TE
R

S

F

WHITEN

HI
G

HW
AY

 8
1

M
C

D
U

FFIE

SC
OTT

K

R

HIG
HW

AY 28

BELHAVEN

P
Q

GREENVILLE

SNOW

ELROD

HART

BLECKLEY

H

MILFORDCLIN
KSCALE

S

DIXON

NORTH

CA
LH

O
UN

PEAR
M

AN
 D

AIRY

REED

HIGHWAY 252

B

BROADWAY SCHOOL

JACKSON
LEE

FRANKLIN

SHIRLEY STORE

BRYANT

DOBB
IN

S 
BR

ID
GE

ERSKINE

LAKESIDE

STANDRIDGE

MAULDIN

GROVE
CENTERVILLE

SAY
RE

FA
GG

LIN
D

ALE

M
CG

EE

TO
W

ER
S

DUE WEST

WILLIAMSTON

PL
AN

TA
TI

O
N

O
LD

 W
IL

LI
AM

ST
O

N

INW
AY

WHITE STREET

BLU
E R

ID
GE

HALL

W
H

ITE

SIMPSON

CHRIS DE

GABLE

KUDZU

MONITOR

BL
U

M
E

G
O

SS
ET

T

PEA C
R

EEK

BROGAN

RICHLAND

MILLGATE

FLAT R
O

C
K

HIGHWAY 24

SINGER

DOROTHY

DIXIE

TRUE TEMPER

JU
LE

 M
AR

TI
N

R
O

BE
RT

SO
N

CORNING

LAWSON

BELHAVEN ROAD

SHOCKLEY FERRY

LITTLE MOUNTAIN
HOOPER

BELLVIEW

PO
PE

JO
H

N
S

GLENWOOD

LANE

PA
RN

EL
L

SER
EN

A

R
IL

EY

LEE DOBBINS

GERRAR
D

HI
G

H 
SH

O
AL

S

NAB

COX

ELLA

M
CDUFFIE STREET

ELLEN

BE
CK

M
AN

HA
LE

Y

HAR
D H

ILL
HOUSE

LO
IS

H
ER

M
A

N
 BR

O
O

KS

FAN
T

LYNN

H
AYN

IE M
ILL

VI
ST

A

FERRY

ROGERS

CARVER

KAYE

PINE

CEDAR

MCDANIEL

GUEST

AIRPO
RT

CHUCK

AC
KE

R

ASPEN

LEON

HOWARD MCGEE

CINDY

C
R

EA
M

ER

MCFA
LL

S

C
LE

VE
LA

N
D

HAW
KIN

S

GEORGE ALBERT LAKE

PL
AI

NV
IE

W

FAIR

N
O

R
R

IS

RIO

WINFIELD

EMMA

PRAIRIE

AM
Y

GILMER

LAWRENCE

OAK

RAMSEY

JE
FF

ER
SO

N

IVY

N
IN

A

PARK

SHIRLEY

HICKORY

SELW
YN

N
EW

 P
O

N
D

HI
LL

TO
P

ED
N

EY

PAGE

MELODY

AUBURN

KAY

MARSHALL

COLA HAW
KINS

HATTEN

TIFFANY

VISAGE

C
AR

PEN
TE

R

WOODFOREST

G W
 M

ZULA

DAVIS

CROSBY

ROSE

PIN
E B

ARK

GARY

CLA
RKE

WEBB
COBBS

SEMINOLE

H
AR

LE
Y

H
AN

N
AH

VICKI

DORA

MCKENZIE

MAPLE

HUDGENS

LISA

BOOKER

CAMPBELL

H
IG

H
 C

PUTT PUTT

CAREY

CARSWELL

ROUSH

JIMMIE

SO
RE

N

EA
ST

W
O

O
D

SER
VIC

E

HUGH

N
AR

D
IN

RUSSELL

RUNWAY

FA
IR

H
AV

E
N

FAIRMONT

YO
R

K

BOXWOOD

LONE OAK

WHITFIELD

LARI

BETA

OLIVE

STAR

TR
AY

W
IC

K

M
ASO

N

OLD
 IV

Y

GENTRY

H
AW

K R
ID

G
E

TA
TE

M
IN

I B
EL

L

SMITH

LOCKE

C
YP

R
ES

S

TUCKER

BO
SE

M
AN

LE
VE

R
ET

TE

PINECROFT

PRICE

FLEMING

HOLLY CREEK

GLENNA

SPRING PARK

HAMMOND

METZ

OLD BELTO
N

WILD FOX

RAYBEN

LAN
D

AU

PELH
AM

KANARD

HERITAGE

LACY

KELLY

O
N

EA
L

MARTIN

SHIRLEY

N
O

R
R

IS

HIG
HWAY 81

K

HALL
AM

ITY

HIG
HW

AY
 29

HAYES

Proposed Council District Two
27,754 Persons; DOJ Minority Percentage 49.59%

Current as of 1st Reading
January 4, 2022

Legend
Lakes

Highways

Roads

EXISTING Council District Boundaries

Proposed NEW District Two Area



I
HI

GH
W

AY
 4

13

ABBEVILLE

HIG
HWAY 29

TR
AI

L

FL
AT

 R
O

C
K

AIRLINE

HIGHWAY 24

RAINEY
HIG

HW
AY

 81 DUE W
EST

AUSTIN

BROAD

HIGHWAY 252

WHITEHALL

KEYS

AGNEW

FIRST

TODD

HAYES

MARTIN

M
AJO

R

BOLT

W
RI

GHT
 S

CH
OOL

SMITH M
CGEE

SHADY GROVE
AMITY

HAMBY

M
U

R
R

AY
ELBERTON

WHITNER

DOBBINS BRIDGE

TA
YLO

R

I-85 NORTHBOUND

BELTON

GRIFFIN

M
IC

H
EL

IN

H
IG

H
W

AY 187

M
AI

N

ANTREVILLE

NORRIS

PR
IN

CET
ON

ORR

COX

TRAVIS

PROJECT

GREERM
ILFO

RD

MANNING

DIXON

PRUITT

O
PRY H

O
U

SE

BU
SBY

BLUE RIDGE

PAIGE

BROWN

MASTERS

GE
NT

RY

BRYANT

BELTON HONEA PATH

WHITEN

REED

HIGHWAY 247

LEVEL LAND

PA
RKER B

OW
IE

GREGG SHOALS

N
EW

 H
O

PE

JONES CHAPEL

HALL

O
LD

 W
IL

LI
AM

ST
O

N

GREE
NVI

LL
E

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

 V
IE

W

CLAMP

BRO
W

N AVEN
UE

DRAKE

RIVER

SC
OTT

BLAKE DAIRY

FRED DEAN

R

HIGHWAY 28

BELHAVEN
CO

RNER

W
ES

T

HA
TT

ON
S 

FO
RD

BILL KAY

LE
W

IS

H
O

LL
ID

AY
 D

AM

SNOW

ELROD

HART
SM

IT
H

BEEKS

BRIC
K M

ILL

MCCLAIN

BA
SK

IN

AN
DE

RS
ON

C
H

AP
M

AN

MIMOSA

M
CG

EE

PETTIGREW

H
EN

R
Y 

TH
O

M
AS

TILLO
TSO

N

TURPIN

SULLIVAN

GABLE

EARL SHIRLEY

MELLR
ICH

SEIGLER

MURPHY

FIRST CREEK

NEW
RY

LENOX

KARI

PO
O

RE

HORTON

WHITE STREET

G
IN

N

HUGHES

LEATHERDALE

KUDZU

CRAFT M
CGEE

FA
R

M
ER

PENNY

LIBERTY

SARAH SIM
PSON

UTZ

STONE

U

CANFIELD

D
U

N
N

P-18-54

GRAD
Y 

HAL
L

OLD ASBURY

LITTLE MOUNTAIN

ROOSEVELT
LAZY

WILMAC

BENTON

SIVNKSTY

BLOUNT

LANE
PA

RN
EL

L

PURDY

SADLERS CREEK

FIELDS

BA
KE

R

HEN COOP

CEDARWOOD

LINDA

C
O

KER

FAN
T

W
HAM

ILA

RISER

KAYE

PIONEER

GUEST

CLE
VE

LA
NDPENINSULA

CARTER

D B R

AC
KER

ASPEN

FI
SH

ER

H
AR

BI
N

FA
IT

H

RIO

BIG CHICK

AM
Y

IVY

PARK

R
IC

E

KAY

SHADY

SUNSET

MAJO
R

FARMER

KA
Y

H
ALL

DUE W
EST

RIVER

BR
O

W
N

H
IG

H
W

AY
 8

1

Proposed Council District Three
27,696 Persons; DOJ Minority Percentage 11.11%

Current as of 1st Reading
January 4, 2022

Legend
Lakes

Highways

Roads

EXISTING Council District Boundaries

Proposed NEW District Three Area



I-8
5 SOUTHBOUND

I-85 NORTHBOUND

LIBE
R

TY

M
ID

W
AY

I

H
IG

H
W

AY
 8

1

HIGHWAY 24

LEBANON

RIVER

WHITEHALL

HIG
HW

AY 76

OLD GREENVILLE

M
AIN

REFUGE

HIGHWAY 243

M
AJO

R

BOLT

CENTERVILLE

AMITY

M
U

R
R

AY

WHITNER

DOBBINS BRIDGE
J

FI
VE

 F
O

R
KS

BELTON

M
IC

H
EL

IN

PINE

FA
IR

PL
AY

ORR

LEWIS

FI
RET

OW
ER

CLEMSON

HAM
LIN

O
LD

 W
IL

LI
AM

ST
O

N

COX

W
ELCOME

M
EL

TO
N

HIG
HW

AY
 18

7

QUEEN

WILSON

LONG

SIX AND TWENTY

C

SL
AT

ER

DIXON

LAKE

STR
IN

G
ER

PI
CK

EN
S

BUSBY

HIX

CAMPBELL

PELZER

CA
LH

O
UN

NORRIS
CO

NC
O

RD

DALRYMPLE

SHACKLEBURG

WHITENOLD DOBBINS BRIDGE

REED

AUTUN

LI
NK

GRIFFIN

RAMAGE

N
EW

 H
O

PE

KEYS

CENTRAL

Friendship

WATKINS

JOLLY

PEAR
M

AN
 D

AIRY

WALKER
M

CDUFFIE

BAUGH
WOODBURN

HILL

M
AR

ET
T

MASSEY

KINGS

M
AS

TE
R

S

MOORE

BELHAVEN

C
on

er
os

s 
C

re
ek

BROWN

CHERRY STREET
MILF

ORD

LOWE

HAMPTON

HATTONS FORD

D
EN

VE
R

MECHANIC

ABBEVILLE

BO
SCO

BEL

SNOW

EASLEY

EA
ST

VI
EW

BLECKLEY

BLACKMAN

PEAC
H

RED BARN

BREAZEALE

SANDY SPRINGS

FAN
TS G

R
O

VE

ELM

RILEY

C
AT

H
EY

B

SLATON

LO
CKA

BY

CRESTVIEW

ROSS

PORTER

FRED DOBBINS

M
ARTIN

SM
IT

H

BOWEN

FR
EEM

AN

LEVIS SMITH

W
est Oak

ERSKINE

CANN

GROVE
MURPHY

BALLARD

CO
NN

ER
O

SS

C
AM

SO
N

HENDRICKS

TIMMS MILL

W
R

EN

LE
D

FO
R

D

SANDERS

SARGENT

HA
RR

IE
TT

BLUE RIDGE

WHITE STREET

MCCLURE

DA
VI

S

W
O

O
TEN

STELLING

RYOBI

MONITOR

BROOKS

SPAKE

MILLGATE

LITHIUM

GAINES

MANSE JO
LL

Y

COLE
Herring

G
U

YT
O

N

C
ED

AR
 G

R
O

VE

DYAR

JU
LE

 M
AR

TI
N

ARNOLD

GRATE

MCGILL

D
U

N
N

LE
E

SHOCKLEY FERRY

PEPPER

OLD ASBURY

LAZY

HOBBY

HURRICANE

FOX

DAY

GIBSON

OPT

NAB

O
NE

AL
 F

ER
RY

D
AL

TO
N

BISHOP BRANCH

EVERGREEN

FANT

AU
TU

M
N

W
H

AM

ILA

PRESHER

OLD DENVER

SCARBO
RO

UG
H

C
O

KER

Turner

PIONEER

GUEST

SLABTOW
N

MCMURTREY

KING

JIM SMITH

FIELDS

OAK

SM
IT

H 
PO

IN
T

BROWNING

RIO

ALP
EN

NAUTICAL

SHEILA

D
 L

ED
N

EY

ELLIS

C C

KAY

BOLEMAN

MULLINAX

SI
N

G
LE

TR
EE

SCO
TT

OAK

COX

SM
IT

H

FAN
T

FAN
T

MASSEY

Proposed Council District Four
29,546 Persons; DOJ Minority Percentage 10.61%

Current as of 1st Reading
January 4, 2022

Legend
Lakes

Highways

Roads

EXISTING Council District Boundaries

Proposed NEW District Four Area



I

HIGHWAY 24

HIG
HW

AY
 29

I-85 SOUTHBOUND

I-85 NORTHBOUND

RIVER

WHITEHALL
H

IG
H

W
AY

 1
87

KEYS

AIRLINE
ABBEVILLE

HAYES

M
AIN

M
AR

TI
N

FAN
T

CENTERVILLE

M
UR

RA
Y

WHITNER

DOBBINS BRIDGE

J

M
ID

W
AY

M
IC

H
E

LI
N

NORRIS

ORR

LEWIS

CLEMSON

HIG
HWAY

 81

CO
NC

O
RD

TRAVIS

BROWN

C

DIXON

BUSBY

MARKET

HIX

E

MASTERS

REED

LI
BE

R
TY

N
EW

 H
O

PE

HALL

GR
EE

NV
IL

LE

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

 V
IE

W
PEAR

M
AN

 D
AIRY

M
CDUFFIE

EAST WEST

FLAT R
O

C
K

KIN
G

S

AGNEW

K
R

LAKEW
OOD

HIGHWAY 28

MID
DLE

TO
N

BOLTHA
TT

O
NS

 F
O

RD
DENVER

O
LD

 W
IL

LI
AM

ST
O

N

SNOW

ELROD

BLECKLEY

CLIN
KSCALE

S

M
CG

EE

NORTH
ELM CA

LH
O

UN

CROMER

SLATON

CRESTVIEW
SM

IT
H

LEE

STANDRIDGE

HIGHWAY 243

MURPHY

TODD

C
AM

SO
N

NURSERY

PROVIDENCE CHURCH
H

IL
LH

O
U

SE

BR
O

AD
W

AY
 L

AK
E

HUITT

ASHLEY

SAY
RE

BOWEN

LI
N

D
AL

E

OLD MILL

KARI

HA
RR

IE
TT

TO
W

ER
S

WILLIAMSTON

CHRIS DE

WHITE STREET

D
AN

IEL

W
H

IT
E

BELHAVEN

H
EM

B
R

EE

OLD PEARMAN DAIRY

MCCLURE

MCCLELLAN

FA
R

M
ER

MONITOR

BL
U

M
E

COX

DON

G
O

SS
ET

T

RICHLAND

OLD PORTMAN

SINGER

KNOX

PENNY
STONE

CE
DA

R 
G

RO
VE

DIXIE

DYAR

ARNOLD

MCGILL

D
U

N
N

CORNING

GRAY

OLD ASBURY

LITTLE MOUNTAIN
WILMAC

FENNELL

OLD WEBB

PO
PE

MARET

LATIM
ER

JACKSO
N

DAY

LANEIN
D

IA
N

 T
R

AI
L

SADLERS CREEK

WESTWIND

MCCOY

R
IL

EY

LEE DOBBINS

GERRAR
D

HIG
H S

HOAL
STRO

TTER

O
NE

AL
 F

ER
RY

ELLA

HICKO
RY RIDG

E

CARL BAKER

CEDARWOOD

PU
BLIC

 W
ELL

W
ESLEY

BIG OAK

RIVER FORKS

H
AL

EY

HA
RD

 H
IL

LH
OU

SE

LO
IS

none
LYNN

VI
ST

A

WHAM

O
AK

DA
LE

CARTEE

H
IO

TT

ILA

OLD DENVER

KAYE

PINE

PH
IL

 W
AT

SO
N

PIONEER

GUEST
KE

AS
LE

R

AIRPO
RTPENINSULA

FRED DOBBINS

JASM
IN

JE
N

K
IN

S

BROADWELL MILL

ACKER

CAMP CREEK

BRO
YLES PO

INT

FIELDS

KAY

HARBIN
C

R
EA

M
ER

W
ILL

IA
MS

SHADOW

ISLAND POINT

ROYAL AMERICAN

FAIR

SUNSET

RIO

AMY

LADYS

GREEN POND

G
ILREATHPARK

FISHER

NAUTICAL

HICKORY

SUSSEX

H
IL

LT
O

P

CANDI SC
EN

IC

MULLINAX WHITE CITY PARK

CASSENA

M
AT

TI
SO

N

KIEV

G W
 M

TAHOE

ROSE

PINE BARK

SARAH

KALYE

CANTER

ES
KE

W

CLA
RKE

WEBB

REG
EN

CY

SWINTON

BR
AD

Y

H
AR

LE
Y

CAMDEN

STONEHAM

FLEET

EC
HO

TERRACE

ARCADIA

BALTIC

HANOVER

TARLETON

LISA

OHARA

PUTT PUTT

ROOKS

BERTHA

KIRKW
O

O
D

R
O

SS

AL
G

O
N

Q
U

IN

WALNUT

WINDY HILL

SA
M

UE
L C

AM
P

LIN
DA

LARI

JAMES HARE

ROW
LAND

PINTAIL

SM
Y

ZER

KAREN

PARADISE

JUNE

PINE

K

JACKSON

AGNEW

DYAR

HI
GH

W
AY

 8
1

MCGEE

Proposed Council District Five
29,755 Persons; DOJ Minority Percentage 15.29%

Current as of 1st Reading
January 4, 2022

Legend
Lakes

Highways

Roads

EXISTING Council District Boundaries

Proposed NEW District Five Area



RI
VE

R

HIGHWAY 81

H
IG

H
W

AY 86

I-8
5 

SO
UT

H
BO

UN
D

I-85 NORTHBOUND

PELZER EL
RO

D

O
AK

CHURCH
CELY

HAM
LIN

MELTON

OLD GREENVILLE

AN
DE

RS
O

N

HIGHWAY 153

EASLEY

FI
RET

OW
ER

LAKE

RIDGE

PI
CK

EN
S

R
O

E

OLD
 M

ILL

H
U

N
T

CAMPBELL

HOOD

HIGHWAY 17

ROGERS

TIMMS

MASSEY

MOORE

SH
IL

O
H

W
R

EN

O
LD

 R
IV

ER

LOWE

O
R

R

TH
R

EE
 A

N
D

 T
W

EN
TY

ST
 P

AUL

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

 V
IE

W

JAMES

COX

HALL

SL
AB

 B
R

ID
G

E

CIRCLE

THREE BRID
GES

HI
G

HW
AY

 2
9

RI
LE

Y

RED BARN

MAJOR

BRYANT

W
REN SCHOOL

LOCKABY

RO
SS

PINE

D
U

R
H

AM

BAUGH

HENDRICKS

O
LD

 W
ILLIAM

STO
N

SMITHWEBB

SITTON HILL

SARGENT

HURRICANE CREEK

IRBY

SHILOH CHURCH

CO
O

PE
R

SE
IG

LE
R

JAMESON

D
AV

IS

PISG
AH

HATTIE

LABOONE

SP
EA

RM
AN

OSTE
EN H

ILL

OLD PENDLETON

TR
O

TT
ER

BAGWELL

LONGVIEW

PEPPER

WATSON

R
O

PE
R

WYATT

POWDERSVILLE

RE
SE

RV
E

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

 S
PR

IN
G

S

TRIPP

SMOAK

BURGESS

CO
UN

TR
Y 

M
AN

O
R

W
 T 

W
YA

TT

G
A

LE

WHITE

Turner

GRIFFITH

LIA

SA
LU

D
A

SLABTOW
N

WILLIAMS

HICKORY

H
EN

D
ER

SO
N

LOCHE

BROWNING

LAKEVIEW

AS
C

O
T

CATER

ILER

RAGSDALE

O
LA

ETT
A

OWENS

EFFIE

DANA

QUEEN ANNE

Mea
do

w R
idg

e

SHERMAN

BRIDGES

R B

FOREST G
LE

N

MCNEELY

SE
VA

N

PA
R

K

SUNSET

LEE

TRAVELIER

SU
RR

Y

CHRISTOPHER

CHILD
S

HIGHPOINT

SITTON

IVY ACRES

DIRT

TIMBROOKE

RO
BB

IN
S

ARTHUR

Old Pendleton

SAWDUST

BL
YT

HW
O

O
D

BE
N

TZ

CHARLIE

OW
EN

DENISE

W
R

EN
TR

EE

M
IR

IN
DA

JACKSON

JU
LI

E

LANE

WATERGATE

TO
LL

IS
O

N

R
IVER

SID
E

RA
NC

H

W
IL

SO
N

OAK

MCNEELY

PINE

OAK

W
RE

N

COOPER

RI
DG

E

MASSEY

C
ELY

SPEARMAN

Proposed Council District Six
30,518 Persons; DOJ Minority Percentage 7.50%

Current as of 1st Reading
January 4, 2022

Legend
Lakes

Highways

Roads

EXISTING Council District Boundaries

Proposed NEW District Six Area



M
ID

W
AY

I

H
IG

H
W

AY
 8

1

I-8
5 SOUTHBOUND

I-85 NORTHBOUND

LIBERTY

AUSTIN

HIGHWAY 252

TR
AI

L

EASLEY

KEYS

TODD

HI
G

HW
AY

 2
9

M
AJO

R

BOLT

SHADY GROVEAMITY

HAMBY

M
U

R
R

AY

WHITNER

TA
YL

OR

G

ABBEVILLE

HAYES

H
IG

H
W

AY
 4

13

J

FI
VE

 F
O

R
KS

BELTON

GRIFFIN

M
AI

N

PR
IN

CET
ON

PINE

BI
G

 C
RE

EK

ORR

AI
R

LI
N

E

BALLARD
O

LD
 W

IL
LI

AM
ST

O
N

COX

FIRETO
W

ER

WELCOME

MIZE

M
EL

TO
N

CHERO
KEE

LONG

GREER

SIX AND TWENTY

C

SL
AT

ER

M
ARTIN

KINGS

STR
IN

G
ER

CHEDDAR

REED

PIC
KEN

S

O
LD

 R
IV

ER

RECTOR

ANDERSON

BLUE RIDGE

E

CO
NC

O
RD

DALRYMPLE

SHACKLEBURG

BELTON HONEA PATH

WHITEN

HIGHWAY 17

HIGHWAY 247

H
IG

H
W

AY
 2

0

MASTERS

JOE BLACK

GREE
NVI

LL
E

PEAR
M

AN
 D

AIRY

CLAMP

CR
AW

FO
RD

WALKER

M
CDUFFIE

BRO
W

N AVEN
UE

BR
O

AD
W

AY
 L

AK
E

HILL

MASSEY

RIVER

SC
OTT

CANNON BOTTOM

BLAKE DAIRY

SH
IL

O
H

R

HIGHWAY 28

W
R

EN

BELHAVEN

HAMILTON

CLEMSON

MILL

BROWN

CORNER

LOWE

TRAVIS

HAMPTON

BILL KAY

LE
W

IS

BELL

H
O

LL
ID

AY
 D

AM

SNOW

ELROD

HART

BLECKLEY

M
O

U
N

TAIN
 VIEW

BEEKS

BRIC
K M

ILL

LO
OPER

BREAZEALE

L

BOITER

C
H

AP
M

AN

IRBY

BRATCHER
M

IN
O

R

C
AT

H
EY

M
ILFO

RD

B

H
EN

R
Y 

TH
O

M
AS

LOCKABY

CRESTVIEW

SH
AW

TILLO
TSO

N

FR
EEM

AN

GABLE

BOWEN

ERSKINE

PARKER

HOGG
BROWNING

GROVE

C
AM

SO
N

ST
ONE

NEW
RY

M
AT

TI
SO

N

TIMMS MILL

SMITH

BETHANY CHURCH

SARGENT

SP
EA

RMAN

MCGEE

HA
RR

IE
TT

HORTON

ROGERS

W
H

ITE

BROOK

W
IL

SO
N

C
O

M
PT

O
N

CHRIS DE

RYOBI

MONITOR

LEBANON

BROOKS

DON

CA
LH

O
UN

LITHIUM

PO
O

RE

MANSE JO
LL

Y

M
U

R
PH

Y

U

JU
LE

 M
AR

TI
N

CANFIELD

BA
G

W
EL

L

LEBBY

ROOSEVELT

HORSESHOE

FIRST

ROSS

HOBBY

CRAFT

FOX

UNION

LANE

PA
RN

EL
L

M
CC

AL
L

OPT

R
IL

EY

NAB

BUTLER

MILLER

LO
IS

EVERGREEN

FANT

BRYANT

LYNN

AU
TU

M
N

ILA

DEVON

HARDY

KAYE

CLE
VE

LA
ND

ZIONOAK

IVY

HARRY

PENNELL

MELVIN

GILMER

ILE
R

SHEILA

GUT
HR

IE

ELLIS

C C

KAY

EFFIE

SI
N

G
LE

TR
EE

RICH

C
AR

LIN
G

H
AN

N
AH

NORTH

BROWNING

KA
Y

SMIT
H

LOCKABY

POORE

ROGERS

FAN
T

C

PINE

FAN
T

LI
BE

RT
Y

MASSEY

HORSESHOE

KAY

MARTIN

MAIN

Proposed Council District Seven
30,493 Persons; DOJ Minority Percentage 8.46%

Current as of 1st Reading
January 4, 2022

Legend
Lakes

Highways

Roads

EXISTING Council District Boundaries

Proposed NEW District Seven Area



HSB 7042832 v.4  

RESOLUTION NO. R2022-003 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN 
INDUCEMENT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN ANDERSON COUNTY, 
SOUTH CAROLINA AND PROJECT FAITH, WHEREBY, UNDER CERTAIN 
CONDITIONS, ANDERSON COUNTY WILL EXECUTE A FEE IN LIEU OF TAX 
AND SPECIAL SOURCE CREDIT AGREEMENT WITH RESPECT TO A 
PROJECT IN THE COUNTY WHEREBY THE PROJECT WOULD BE SUBJECT 
TO PAYMENT OF CERTAIN FEES IN LIEU OF TAXES, AND WHEREBY 
PROJECT FAITH WILL BE PROVIDED CERTAIN CREDITS AGAINST FEE 
PAYMENTS IN REIMBURSEMENT OF INVESTMENT IN RELATED 
QUALIFIED INFRASTRUCTURE; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED 
MATTERS. 

 
WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County 

Council (the “County Council”), is authorized and empowered, under and pursuant to the provisions of 
Title 12, Chapter 44 (the “FILOT Act”), Title 4, Chapter 1 (the “Multi-County Park Act”), Code of Laws 
of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the “Code”), to enter into agreements with industry, to offer certain 
privileges, benefits and incentives as inducements for economic development within the County; to acquire, 
or cause to be acquired, properties as may be defined as “projects” in the Act and to enter agreements with 
the business or industry to facilitate the construction, operation, maintenance and improvement of such 
projects; to enter into or allow financing agreements with respect to such projects; and to accept any grants 
for such projects through which powers the industrial and business development of the State will be 
promoted, whereby the industry would pay fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to qualified projects; to 
provide credits against payment in lieu of taxes for reimbursement in respect of investment in certain 
infrastructure serving the County or the project, including improved or unimproved real estate and personal 
property, including machinery and equipment, used in the manufacturing or industrial enterprise 
(collectively, “Infrastructure”); through all such powers, the industrial development of the State of South 
Carolina (the “State”) will be promoted and trade developed by inducing manufacturing and commercial 
enterprises to locate or remain in the State and thus utilize and employ the manpower, products and 
resources of the State and benefit the general public welfare the County by providing services, employment, 
recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; and  

 
WHEREAS, PROJECT FAITH (the “Company”) has requested that the County assist in the 

acquisition, construction and installation of land, buildings, improvements, fixtures, machinery, equipment, 
furnishings and other real and/or tangible personal property to constitute an expansion to its metal 
fabrication manufacturing facility in the County (collectively, the “Project”), which will result in expected 
investment by the Company in the Project of at least approximately $3,825,000 in non-exempt investment 
and the expected creation of approximately 10 new, full-time jobs (with benefits) in connection therewith, 
by December 31 of the fifth year after the first year which any portion of the Project is first placed in service; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Company has requested that the County enter into a fee in lieu of tax agreement 

with the Company, thereby providing for certain fee in lieu of tax and special source credit incentives with 
respect to the Project, all as more fully set forth in the Inducement Agreement (as hereinbelow defined) 
attached hereto and made a part hereof; and  

 
WHEREAS, the County has determined on the basis of the information supplied to it by the 

Company that the Project would be a “project” and “economic development property” as such terms are 
defined in the FILOT Act and that the Project would serve the purposes of the FILOT Act; and  

 



2 
HSB 7042832 v.4  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of Section 4-1-170 of the Multi-County Park Act and Article 
VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution (collectively, the “Multi-County Park Authority”), the 
County intends to cause the site on which the Project is or will be located, to the extent not already therein 
located, in a multi-county industrial and business park (a “Park”) established by the County pursuant to 
qualifying agreement with an adjoining South Carolina county (the “Park Agreement”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the County has determined and found, on the basis of representations of the 

Company, that the Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing 
services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; that the Project 
will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated municipality or a charge against 
the general credit or taxing power of either; that the purposes to be accomplished by the Project, i.e., 
economic development, creation of jobs, and addition to the tax base of the County, are proper 
governmental and public purposes; that the inducement of the location of the Project within the County and 
State is of paramount importance; and that the benefits of the Project will be greater than the costs; and the 
County has agreed to effect the delivery of an Inducement Agreement on the terms and conditions 
hereinafter set forth. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Council as follows: 
 
Section 1.  (a) Pursuant to the authority given to County Council by the South Carolina 

Constitution, the Code, the FILOT Act and the Multi-County Park Act, and subject to the enactment of 
required legislative authorizations by the County Council, and for the purpose of providing development 
incentives for the Project through the payment by the Companies of fees in lieu of taxes with respect to the 
Project pursuant to Section 12-44-40 of the Act, and for the purpose of providing for the provision special 
source credits against payments in lieu of taxes made by the Company pursuant to a Park Agreement in order 
to allow reimbursement to the company for a portion of its investment in qualified Infrastructure within the 
meaning and purposes of Section 4-29-68 of the Code, there is hereby authorized to be executed an 
Inducement Agreement between the County and the Company pertaining to the Project, the form of which is 
now before the County Council (the “Inducement Agreement”) so as to establish, among other things, that 
the County and the Company will be parties to a fee in lieu tax and special source credit agreement (the “Fee 
Agreement”).  

 
(b)  The County Council will use its best efforts to take all reasonable acts to ensure that the 

Project will continuously be included within the boundaries of the Park or another qualified multi-county 
industrial or business park in order that the tax benefits contemplated hereunder and afforded by the laws 
of the State for projects located within multi-county industrial or business parks will be available to the 
Company for at least the term of the Fee Agreement. 

 
Section 2.  The provisions, terms and conditions of the Fee Agreement shall be prescribed and 

authorized by subsequent ordinance(s) of the County Council, which, to the extent not prohibited by law, 
shall be consistent with the terms of this Resolution. 

 
Section 3.  All orders, resolutions and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent of 

such conflict, hereby repealed. This resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage 
by the County Council. 

 
Section 4.  The authorization of the execution and delivery of the documents related to the 

Inducement Agreement and Fee Agreement and all other related documents or obligations of the County is 
subject to the compliance by the County Council with the provisions of the Home Rule Act regarding the 
procedural requirements for adopting ordinances and resolutions. 

 



3 
HSB 7042832 v.4  

Section 5.  It is the intention of the County Council that this resolution shall constitute an 
inducement resolution with respect to the Project, within the meaning of the FILOT Act. 
 

DONE in meeting duly assembled this ___ day of ________, 2022. 
 
 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 

 
By:_______________________________________ 

      Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

 
Attest: 
 
 
By:____________________________________ 
            Rusty Burns, County Administrator 
 Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
 
 
By:____________________________________ 
            Renee Watts, Clerk to Council 
 Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
By:       
 Leon C. Harmon, County Attorney 
 Anderson County, South Carolina 
 



HSB 7042832 v.4  

INDUCEMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS INDUCEMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) made and entered into as of 
__________, 2022 by and between ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, a body politic and 
corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina (the “County”), and PROJECT 
FAITH, a South Carolina corporation (the “Company”). 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

ARTICLE I 
RECITATION OF FACTS 

 
 Section 1.1. As a means of setting forth the matters of mutual inducement which have resulted 
in the making and entering into of this Agreement, the following statements of fact are herewith recited: 
 
 (a) The County, by and through its County Council, is authorized and empowered by the 
provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44 (the “FILOT Act”) and Title 4, Chapter 1 (the “Multi-County Park 
Act”), Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the “Code”), to allow for the payment of certain 
fees in lieu of ad valorem taxes with respect to industrial properties; to issue special source revenue bonds, 
or in the alternative, to provide special source credits against payment in lieu of taxes for reimbursement in 
respect of investment in certain infrastructure serving the County or the project, including improved or 
unimproved real estate and personal property, including machinery and equipment, used in the manufacturing 
or industrial enterprise (collectively, “Infrastructure”); through all such powers the development of the State 
of South Carolina (the “State”) will be promoted and trade developed by inducing new industries to locate 
in the State and by encouraging industries now located in the State to expand their investments and thus 
utilize and employ manpower and other resources of the State and benefit the general public welfare of the 
County by providing services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided 
locally. 
 
 (b) The Company requested that the County assist in the acquisition, construction and 
installation of land, buildings, improvements, fixtures, machinery, equipment, furnishings and other real 
and/or tangible personal property to constitute an expansion of its metal fabrication manufacturing facility 
in the County (collectively, the “Project”), which will result in an expected investment by the Company in 
the Project of at least approximately $3,825,000 (the “Investment Target”) and the expected creation by the 
Company of at least approximately 10 net new, full-time, jobs (with benefits) with respect thereto (the “Jobs 
Creation Target”), all by December 31 of the fifth (5th) year after the first year in which any portion of the 
Project is first placed in service (the “Investment Period”). 
 
 (c) Pursuant to the authority of Section 4-1-170 of the Multi-County Park Act and Article VIII, 
Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution, the County will use its best efforts to place the site of the Project 
in a multi-county industrial and business park (the “Park”) established by the County pursuant to qualifying 
agreement with Greenville County or other adjoining county in the State (the “Park Agreement”). 
 
 (d) The County has determined after due investigation that the Project would be aided by the 
availability of the assistance which the County might render through applicable provisions of the FILOT 
Act and the Multi-County Park Act as economic development incentives, and the inducements offered, will, 
to a great degree, result in the Project locating in the County. Pursuant to this determination, the Company 
and the County have agreed to negotiate for payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes as authorized by the 
FILOT Act, and the Company and the County have agreed as set forth in the Fee Agreement, pursuant to 
Section 4-1-175 of the Multi-County Park Act, that the Company would be afforded certain credits as 



5 
HSB 7042832 v.4  

described herein against its payments in lieu of taxes in respect of the Company’s investment in qualified 
Infrastructure within the meaning and purposes of Section 4-29-68 of the Code. 
 
 (e) The County has given due consideration to the economic development impact of the 
Project, and as a preliminary matter, based on representations by the Company, hereby finds and determines 
that (i) the Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing service, 
employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally, (ii) the Project will give 
rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated municipality or a charge against the general 
credit or taxing power of either, (iii) the purposes to be accomplished by the Project, i.e., economic 
development, retention of jobs, and addition to the tax base of the County, are proper governmental and 
public purposes, (iv) the inducement of the location of the Project within the County and State is of 
paramount importance and (v) the benefits of the Project will be greater than the costs. The County, 
therefore, has agreed to effect the issuance and delivery of this Agreement, pursuant to the FILOT Act, the 
Multi-County Park Act and a Resolution of the County Council dated ________, 2022, and on the terms 
and conditions set forth. 
 
 

ARTICLE II 
UNDERTAKINGS ON THE PART OF THE COUNTY 

 
 The County agrees as follows: 
 
 Section 2.1. The County, subject to the limits set forth herein, agrees to enter into a Fee in Lieu 
of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement with the Company with respect to the Project (the “Fee 
Agreement”).  
 
 Section 2.2. The Fee Agreement will be executed at such time and upon such mutually 
acceptable terms as the Company shall request, subject to the provisions of Sections 2.7 and 4.2 herein. 
 
 Section 2.3. The terms and provisions of the Fee Agreement shall be substantially in the form 
generally utilized in connection with the FILOT Act, as to be agreed upon by the County and the Company. 
The Fee Agreement shall contain, in substance, the following provisions: 
 

(a) The term of the Fee Agreement will be for a period of thirty (30) years, commencing with 
the first year of the capital investment made under the Fee Agreement. 

(b) The Fee Agreement shall provide that, in the performance of the agreements contained 
therein on the part of the County, such agreement will not give rise to any pecuniary liability of the County 
and shall not create a charge against the general credit or taxing power of the County, the State or any 
incorporated municipality. 

(c) The Fee Agreement shall contain a provision requiring the Company to make payments in 
lieu of taxes to the County for a period of thirty (30) years after each year of the capital investment made 
under the Fee Agreement during the Investment Period. The amounts of such payments shall be determined 
by using (i) an assessment ratio of 6%; (ii) a fixed millage rate of 334.27 mills (that is, the cumulative 
millage rate in effect at the site of the Project for all taxing entities as of June 30, 2021); and (iii) the fair 
market value of the Project property as determined by the South Carolina Department of Revenue in 
accordance with the FILOT Act. For purposes of computing the amount of such fee, in accordance with the 
terms of Section 12-44-50(2) of the FILOT Act, the property shall be allowed all applicable property tax 
exemptions except the exemption allowed under Section 3(g) of Article X of the Constitution of the State 
of South Carolina and the exemptions allowed pursuant to Sections 12-37-220(B)(32) and (34) of the Code.  



6 
HSB 7042832 v.4  

(d) The Company may dispose of and replace property subject to fee in lieu of tax payments, 
as set forth in Section 12-44-60 of the FILOT Act; the fee with respect to such replacement property shall 
be calculated in accordance with the provisions of said Section 12-44-60. 

 Section 2.4. The County hereby consents to the planning, design, acquisition, construction and 
carrying out of the Project to commence prior to the execution and delivery of the Fee Agreement. Contracts 
for construction and for purchase of machinery, equipment and personal property deemed necessary under 
the Fee Agreement or that are otherwise permitted under the FILOT Act may be let by the Company, in its 
sole discretion. 
 
 Section 2.5. Pursuant to Section 4-1-175 of the Multi-County Park Act, the County, subject to 
the limits set forth herein, including Sections 2.7 and 4.2 hereof and pursuant to the Fee Agreement, will 
provide a special source credit against payments in lieu of taxes by the Company pursuant to the Park 
Agreement or the Fee Agreement, as the case may be, to reimburse the Company in respect of its investment 
in Infrastructure pertaining to the Project. In these respects, the Company shall be entitled to claim an annual 
special source credit against the Company’s payments in lieu of taxes under the Park Agreement for a period 
of ten (10) years. The application of such special source credits shall be provided by the County in an 
amount equal to the following percentages of each year’s payments in lieu of taxes pursuant to the Park 
Agreement, to be calculated and applied after any amount due the non-host county(ies), with respect to the 
Project (that is, with respect to investment made by the Company under the Fee Agreement during the 
Investment Period): 
 

(a) Sixty percent (60%) for the first five (5) years of the payments in lieu of taxes under the Fee 
Agreement; and  

(b) Thirty percent (30%) for years six (6) through ten (10) of the payments in lieu of taxes under 
the Fee Agreement. 

 Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, under no circumstances shall the Company be 
entitled to claim or receive any abatement of ad valorem taxes for any portion of investment in the Project 
for which a special source credit is taken. 
 

In no event shall the aggregate amount of any special source credits claimed by the Company 
exceed the amount expended by it with respect to the Infrastructure at any point in time. 
 
 Section 2.6. Subject to the matters contained herein, the Fee Agreement will be executed at 
such time and upon such mutually acceptable terms as the parties shall agree. 
 
 Section 2.7. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the authorization by 
the County of the Fee Agreement is subject to compliance by the County with the provisions of the Home 
Rule Act regarding the enactment of ordinances and shall not constitute a general obligation or indebtedness 
of the County nor a pledge of the full faith and credit or the taxing power of the County. Further, the County 
will perform such other acts and adopt such other proceedings, consistent with this Agreement, as may be 
required to faithfully implement this Agreement and will assist, in good faith and with all reasonable 
diligence, with such usual and customary governmental functions as will assist the successful completion 
of the Project by the Company. The County has made no independent legal or factual investigation 
regarding the particulars of this Agreement or the transaction contemplated hereunder and, further, executes 
this Agreement in reliance upon the representations by the Company that the Agreement and related 
documents comply with all laws and regulations, particularly those pertinent to industrial development 
projects in the State. 
 



7 
HSB 7042832 v.4  

 Section 2.8. Should the Company fail to collectively invest the FILOT Act Minimum 
Investment Requirement in connection with the Project, by the end of the Investment Period, the Company 
shall be liable for the difference between the amount of payments in lieu of taxes actually paid pursuant to 
the Fee Agreement (taking into account all infrastructure credits actually received) and the amount of ad 
valorem taxes which would have been due and payable with respect to the Project had the Fee Agreement 
not been entered into, with interest at the rate payable for late payment of taxes. Any amounts determined 
to be owing pursuant to the foregoing sentence shall be payable to the County on or before the one hundred 
twentieth (120th) day following the last day of the Investment Period. 
 
 

ARTICLE III 
UNDERTAKINGS ON THE PART OF THE COMPANIES 

 
 Section 3.1. Except with respect to the Fee Agreement, the County will have no obligation to 
assist the Company in finding any source of financing for all or any portion of the property constituting the 
Project and the Company may endeavor to finance the Project to the extent required to finance the cost of 
the acquisition and installation of the Project. 
 
 Section 3.2. If the Project proceeds as contemplated: 
 
 (a) The Company agrees to enter into the Fee Agreement, under the terms of which it will 
obligate themselves to make the payments required by the FILOT Act including, but not limited to, 
payments in lieu of taxes at rates calculated in accordance with Section 2.3(d) hereof; 
 
 (b) With respect to the Project, the Company agrees to reimburse the County for all out-of-
pocket costs, including reasonable attorney’s fees of the County actually incurred, and other out-of-pocket 
expenditures to third parties to which the County might be reasonably put with regard to executing and 
entering into this Agreement and the Fee Agreement; 
 

(c) The Company agrees to hold the County harmless from all pecuniary liability including, 
without limitation, environmental liability, and to reimburse the County for all expenses to which the 
County might be put in the fulfillment of its obligations under this Agreement and in the negotiation and 
implementation of its terms and provisions, including reasonable legal expenses and fees;  
 

(d) The Company agrees to apply for, and use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain, all 
permits, licenses, authorizations and approvals required by all governmental authorities in connection with 
the construction and implementation of the Project;  
 

(e) The Company agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the County and the individual members, 
officers, agents and employees thereof harmless against any claim or loss or damage to property or any injury 
or death of any person or persons occurring in connection with the planning, design, acquisition, construction, 
leasing, carrying out or operation of the Project, including without limitation any environmental liability. The 
defense obligation shall be supplied with legal counsel reasonably acceptable to the County. The Company 
agrees also agrees to reimburse or otherwise pay, on behalf of the County, any and all expenses not 
hereinbefore mentioned incurred by the County in connection with the Project, including the review and 
execution of the Resolution and this Agreement; and 
 

(f) The Company agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to meet, or cause to be met, 
the Investment Target and the Jobs Creation Target during the Investment Period. 
 
 



8 
HSB 7042832 v.4  

ARTICLE IV 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
 Section 4.1. All commitments of the County under Article II hereof are subject to all of the 
provisions of the FILOT Act and the Multi-County Park Act, including, without limitation, the condition 
that nothing contained in this Agreement shall constitute or give rise to a pecuniary liability of the County 
or any incorporated municipality or a charge against the general credit or taxing powers of either. 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT AND THE SPECIAL SOURCE CREDITS PROVIDED FOR 
HEREUNDER ARE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF THE COUNTY PROVIDED BY THE COUNTY 
SOLELY FROM THE NET FEE PAYMENTS RECEIVED AND RETAINED BY THE COUNTY, AND 
DO NOT AND SHALL NEVER CONSTITUTE AN INDEBTEDNESS OF THE COUNTY WITHIN THE 
MEANING OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISION (OTHER THAN THE PROVISIONS OF 
ARTICLE X, SECTION 14(10) OF THE SOUTH CAROLINA CONSTITUTION) OR STATUTORY 
LIMITATION, AND DO NOT AND SHALL NEVER CONSTITUTE OR GIVE RISE TO A 
PECUNIARY LIABILITY OF THE COUNTY OR A CHARGE AGAINST ITS GENERAL CREDIT OR 
TAXING POWER. THE FULL FAITH, CREDIT, AND TAXING POWER OF THE COUNTY ARE NOT 
PLEDGED FOR THE SPECIAL SOURCE CREDITS. 
 
 Section 4.2. All commitments of the County and the Company hereunder are subject to the 
condition that the County and the Company agree on mutually acceptable terms and conditions of all 
documents, the execution and delivery of which are contemplated by the provisions hereof, and the adoption 
by the County Council of an ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of such documents and 
approving the terms thereof. If the parties enter into the Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit 
Agreement, each party shall perform such further acts and adopt such further proceedings as may be 
required to faithfully implement its undertakings pursuant to such agreements. 
 
 Section 4.3. If for any reason this Agreement (as opposed to the Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special 
Source Credit Agreement, which are contemplated to be negotiated, signed and delivered subsequent to the 
execution and delivery of this Agreement) is not executed and delivered by the Company on or before 
December 31, 2023, the provisions of this Agreement may be cancelled by the County by delivery of written 
notice of cancellation signed by the County Administrator and delivered to the Company; thereafter neither 
party shall have any further rights against the other and no third parties shall have any rights against either 
party except that the Company shall pay the out-of-pocket expenses to third parties of officers, agents and 
employees of the County and counsel for the County incurred in connection with the authorization and 
approval of the Fee Agreement. 
 
 Section 4.4. The parties understand that the Company may choose not to proceed with the 
Project, in which event this Agreement shall be cancelled and, subject to parties’ obligations described in 
Section 4.3 hereof, neither party shall have any further rights against the other, and no third party shall have 
any rights against either party. 
 
 Section 4.5. To the maximum extent allowable under the FILOT Act and the Multi-County 
Park Act, the Company may, with the prior consent of the County (which shall not be unreasonably 
withheld), assign (including, without limitation, absolute, collateral, and other assignments) all or part of 
its rights and/or obligations under this Agreement to one or more other entities, in connection with the Fee 
Agreement, without adversely affecting the benefits to the Company or its assignees pursuant hereto or 
pursuant to the FILOT Act or the Multi-County Park Act; provided, however, that the Company may make 
any such assignment to an affiliate of the Company without obtaining the consent of the County, to the 
extent permitted by law. 
 



9 
HSB 7042832 v.4  

 Section 4.6. This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by a writing signed by or 
on behalf of all parties by their duly authorized officers and approved by appropriate legal process. No 
amendment, modification, or termination of this Agreement, and no waiver of any provisions or consent 
required hereunder shall be valid unless consented to in writing by all parties; provided, however, the 
County may terminate this Agreement if the Company fails to perform its obligations under the Agreement. 
 
 Section 4.7. Nothing in this Agreement or any attachments hereto is intended to create, and no 
provision hereof should be so construed or interpreted as to create any third party beneficiary rights in any 
form whatsoever nor any form of partnership or other legal entity relationship between the County and the 
Companies. 
 
 Section 4.8. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties regarding the 
matters set forth herein. This Agreement shall be interpreted by the laws of the State. 
 

[Signature pages follow.] 
 
  



10 
HSB 7042832 v.4  

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, each after due authorization, have executed this 
Inducement Agreement on the respective dates indicated below, as of the date first above written. 
 
 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
        
Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 
 

 
Attest: 
 
 
By:________________________________________ 

            Renee Watts, Clerk to Council 
  Anderson County, South Carolina 

 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGE 1 OF INDUCEMENT AGREEMENT] 
  



11 
HSB 7042832 v.4  

 
 

PROJECT FAITH 
 
 
      By:_________________________________________ 
      Name:______________________________ 
      Title:______________________________ 
 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGE 2 OF INDUCEMENT AGREEMENT] 
 
 



HSB 7042832 v.4  

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk of the County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby 
certify that the foregoing is a true, correct and verbatim copy of resolution duly adopted at a meeting of said 
County Council held on ________________, 2022, at which meeting a quorum was at all times present.  
 
 WITNESS MY HAND this ____ day of ________, 2022.  
 
 
 
 ____________________________________ 
   Renee Watts, Clerk to Council 
   Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
 
























	Agenda January 4, 2022
	2a Resolution Marty Knight
	2b Resolution Starr-Iva Water 
	8a Ordinance # 2021-074
	8b Ordinance #2021-075
	8c Ordinance # 2021-076 Project Greenlight
	8d Ordinance #2021-077 Project Ott
	9a Ordinance #2022-001 Project Faith
	9b Ordinance #2022-002 Redisricting
	10a Resolution R2022-003 Project Faith
	11a Bid Approval Bid #22-027 Resurfacing
	11b Bid Approval #22-029 Field Lighting
	12a Road Acceptance/Shakelburg Farms



